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OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu
light, medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose
vehicles and diesel and petrol engines. All of the production facilities
of the Group are located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and substantially all the sales of the Group are also made
in the PRC. The Group had export sales to Japan during the year,
which accounted for approximately 1.38% of the Group's turnover
for the year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group had 3,048 employees as at 31 December 2011.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Qingling Motors Co.
Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2011 for your review.

2011 RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company sold 75,821
vehicles, an increase of 26% over the 60,025 vehicles sold last
year. Turnover reached RMB8.15 billion, an increase of 33% over
RMB6.11 billion as recorded last year. Profit for the year was
RMB356 million, an increase of 17% over RMB303 million as
recorded last year.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

Last year, the year of 2011, was the year that the 12th Five-Year
Plan Period commenced and an extremely meaningful year to
the development of the Company. Despite of the adverse effects
brought by the worsening international economic environment and
the strong earthquake in Japan, the Company had, by leveraging on
the arduous and relentless efforts rendered by all the staff, achieved
excellent results in the production and operation, technical reform,
marketing competitiveness enhancement, basic management and
team building, as well as the further implementation of its “open-
up” strategy, which provided support to the Company for achieving
satisfactory results in the manufacturing operation during the period
and made considerable steps for our sustainable and rapid growth
during the 12th Five-Year Plan Period.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

BT — AT ARLEEASE
Sales and marketing penetrating — newly developed
4S distributors in cities at prefecture level

Steadily promoted various projects for the expansion of
production capacities in assembly and components and
parts produced internally and procured externally, as
well as the construction of testing/inspection centers,
so as to lay a solid foundation in terms of hardware for
the sustainable development of the Company: () The
new T/U assembly lines were completed and commenced
production in 2011, and the new N series of assembly lines are
expected to be completed and commence production in the
first half of 2012; (ii) the Company completed the expansion
of the production capacities for components and parts
internally produced and procured externally, such as engines
and gearboxes, and procured externally; (iii) the Company
introduced advanced technologies and equipment from
Europe, America and Japan to establish testing and inspection
centers at advanced levels, which are in use during the first
half of 2012.

Considerably sharpened the competitiveness of sales
and marketing. The number of 4S sales networks for light-
duty vehicles doubled that of 2009, penetrating vertically
from various capital cities and economic center cities into
cities at prefecture level, counties and towns; and expanding
horizontally from developed costal regions in the east to
various inland regions at the center and in the west. The
Company has developed dozens of new distributors in the
regions with great demand and stock for medium and heavy-
duty vehicles during the past two years, a good start in the
construction of the 4S sales networks for medium and heavy-
duty vehicles.
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= REREEH H mEKIEE

RONTHEER - AFERAR
o8 RU M AR 1R N B R A+ 80
% N B £ E T % BKDIF R
fE - ATRMNIEREE —
i 2 A BB ERT ER
KD BN # ET E Ry A 8 » 2 7]
B TE N HIE 1R M B T 15 e
RAMEK - BENHEERE -
HERMLEEEREBNI)
B RASREEMME T
RERMESER - HEE
MEMmEEEHE— 2R
(N

BiFSIE B > WMUERN
CHhRIAHEES ERM
BRREE o —T—TF
FHETHKRAZXDHTRES
R EHRBEREAZEIV
W% —ET——FK %
RONE@mAMEHEAR - H
BREEARTER - —F—_F
REEmMMISEN -

>

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

HINEIE —BERBEREEEPHEUELNEN
Cooperation with foreign partners — signing
ceremony of cooperation in respect of heavy-duty
vehicles and the engines for heavy-duty vehicles

Output in good quality and quantity to satisfy the sharply
growing demand of the market. The Company made timely
contact with Isuzu after the strong earthquake in Japan and
coordinated the production of KD components needed for
the production of the Company, so that Isuzu managed to
solve the imminent supply shortage problem of Qingling KD
components in just over a month after the earthquake. The
Company paid persistent efforts on the implementation of
managerial and technical measures to improve the efficiency
and ensure timely deliveries. The Company consistently
enhanced the structure and function of its quality management
system, urged all manufacturing units and subsidiaries to put
extra efforts on quality management, and further strengthened
the quality control over its products.

Insisted on self-innovation supplemented by the
introduction, assimilation and absorption of external
technologies, and achieved outstanding results in the
development of new products. In 2010, the Company and
the foreign partners jointly initiated the upgrading projects of
the existing series of engines so as to comply with the national
IV emission standard. At the end of 2011, the trial production
and testing of all series of vehicles and engines were
basically completed which will be launched into the market
successively in 2012.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

5. Painstakingly enhanced internal strength by putting extra
efforts on basic management as well as the education
and training of the cadres and workers. In terms of basic
management, (i) the Company drew up new designs for and
made adjustments to the structures and functions of its major
administrative departments and subsidiaries; (i) the Company
put extra efforts on key professional management areas
including technical management, equipment management,
cost accounting management and quality management; (iii) the
Company established a corporate management department
to supervise, review and examine the quality of the basic
management; forming a matrix. It also put extra efforts on the
education and training of the cadres and workers. The leaders
of the Company prepared teaching materials on their own
and invited experts and professors to conduct professional
and vocational trainings on 10 topics such as management,
costing, quality, welding and machining.

6. Further implemented its “open-up” strategy while
making new strategic progress. The Company and the
foreign partner reached a consensus on their cooperation in
respect of heavy-duty vehicles and the engines for heavy-
duty vehicles, and entered into a cooperation agreement in
September 2011, according to which, both parties would begin
to manufacture heavy-duty vehicles and the engines for heavy-
duty vehicles in addition to the existing light-duty, medium-
duty and light-heavy-duty vehicles, in order to compete in the
heavy-duty vehicle market. The heavy-duty vehicle segment
will become a new growth point for the production and
operation of the Company and a new driving force for our
sustainable and rapid development in the 12th Five-Year Plan
Period.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTUS

Despite of the slowdown of the economy in China and all over
the world, the stock level of vehicles remains high and there are
needs for replacement. The increase in new demand is receding,
but it definitely will not cease. To analyze the market demand by
different segments, the demand of certain segments is significantly
affected by the macro economy. That is, when the economy is
booming, many more suppliers will enter into such segments in
response to the strong demand; when the economy is cooling
down, the market share of each supplier will shrink dramatically. On
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

the other hand, the market demand of the other segment is hardly
affected by the changes in the macro economy. In recent years,
with the development of national economy and the acceleration
of urbanization, the speeding up of industry deployment; real
economy relocated very quickly from provinces, cities, and cities
at prefecture level to counties and towns and the key industries
of the counties and towns themselves grew gradually and became
strong. The combined effect of these two factors enabled the
counties and towns to become the new emerged markets that is
least affected by macro economy fluctuation. If the Company can
grasp these opportunities, we can increase our sales regardless of
unfavorable market situation and widen the gap between us and our
competitors.

Our focuses in 2012:

1. Seek growth by focusing on developing the markets of
various counties and towns in China: (i) the Company will
make extra efforts to develop direct distributors in various
counties and towns ahead of the competitors, so as to seek
new business growth and establish a distribution network
that covers the provinces, cities, cities at prefecture level,
counties and towns; (i) the Company will continue to nurture
the existing distributors in various provinces, cities and cities
at prefecture level to ensure the stable expansion of its sales
volume.

2. Complete the expansion of the production capacity in
assembly, complete the hardware construction of testing
and inspection centers, and commence immediately the
technical reform projects that are scientifically verified but
have yet to be carried out; steadily promote the projects
of heavy-duty vehicles and the engines for heavy-duty
vehicles: (i) the Company will speed up the construction of
the N series assembly lines and interior decoration production
line and put them into production. It will also quickly complete
the installation, the testing and adjustment of the equipment
installed in the testing and inspection centers and put them
into operation. (i) The Company will promote the reform
projects of the coating system and production information
management system which had been scientifically verified
in 2011. (i) It will also steadily carry out the projects in
relation to heavy-duty vehicles and the engines for heavy-duty
vehicles and strive to set up a joint venture company so that
construction work can commence as soon as possible.



EER®ME

= - BEBE BEANMSEEZR
REBENBIBRIHNE -
Bile 2 ——F » FEE
MEBETIEAMES AR
BRFEE S MABET -
AECEE CRAE - RE
EHRA G2 E T
A %%  5SE% - EHK
ETHREMH T ——4F -
NAZSEMNE2 H/AL
EHEARERTIHERE 1B
MEEBERHEERE T
Bk TE REABREL
B EoA— @K - B
EM MR -

MO EFRIECHBHTBR TR
B Bl BEIRMRERRIE
o EMKRE RERMEES
B HEXENAMETE &
HE M E BB TIHEERRE
il EREREEBEEHBRAN
HEH -

HH T —FRRRNBEREE
B ARBIRE 2BETER
TER#  MEBREEXD X
MERBENEE - BATSH
B BHIRAREFRAERHNE
BERE AREETXREMRE
B @ 3R o

RE

EFER

—E——-—#F=ZA=+XH

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

3. Putting extra effort on basic management and on the
provision of education and training to the cadres and staff.
In 2011, various basic management works just commenced
and the newly adjusted structure just began operation.
Other areas like production, quality, cost, equipment, molds,
measuring tools, work position apparatus, safety, 5S and so
on are yet to be implemented. In 2012, all the units of the
Company shall focus their efforts on basic management, so
as to consolidate the newly complete platform; continue to
improve and optimize, and seriously accumulate experience so
that this structure will become sophisticated and steady.

The Company had been consistently strengthening the education
and training provided to its cadres and staff, the quality of our team
was rapidly enhanced and it grew strongly and solidly. We should
continue to make unremitting effort to educate and train our cadres
and staff with emphasis on both of their ethics as well as abilities.
We are confident that we can nurture a mighty soft power for the
enterprise.

In face of the development opportunities in 2012 and in the future,
the Company believes that all the staff will seize the time and
make full use of its existing competitive edges on the resources to
increase its market share, strive to achieve better operating results
and bring more satisfactory returns for the investors.

WU Yun
Chairman

26 March 2012
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Yun, aged 58, has been an executive Director since 28
April 1994. Mr. WU is also the chairman of the Company and the
Chairman of the nomination committee and the chairman and
general manager of Qingling Motors (Group) Company Limited
(“Qingling Group”). Mr. WU is a senior economist, has been
in the motor vehicle production industry for over 31 years and
has extensive experience in management and finance. He is a
representative of Chongging National People's Congress. Mr.
WU graduated from Hunan University, specialising in automobile
studies.

Mr. GAO Jianmin, aged 52, has been an executive Director
since 28 April 1994. Mr. GAO is currently an executive director
and managing director of Silver Grant International Industries
Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”, Stock Code: 171) and an executive director of
Jiangxi Copper Company Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 358). Mr. GAO has more than 23 years of experience
in finance, industrial investment and development. He holds a
Bachelor degree in engineering from Qinghua University.

Mr. Makoto TANAKA, aged 60, has been an executive Director
since 17 June 2008. Mr. TANAKA is also the general manager of the
Company. Mr. TANAKA graduated from Nihon University. He joined
Isuzu Motors Co. Ltd (“Isuzu”) in April 1975. He served in different
positions in Isuzu from December 1994 to April 2005, including
supervisor of assembly team of Large Size Automobiles Technology
Department, director of production coordination department of
production technology planning office and director of PT public
works department. He was president of Isuzu Engine Manufacturing
(Thailand) Co. Ltd. during the period from May 2005 to April 2007.
He returned to Isuzu in April 2007 and served as PT production
executive director.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA, aged 63, has been an executive Director
since 2 March 2011. Mr. TSUKIOKA graduated from Waseda
University in Japan. Mr. TSUKIOKA joined Isuzu in April 1972 and
from November 1998 until November 2002, he held the positions
in Isuzu as team member of the production planning department,
team member of the merchandise planning department, head
of the 1st, 3rd and 5th divisions of the commercial vehicles
merchandise planning department, officer of the commercial
vehicles merchandise planning department and officer of the
vehicles development office. From June 2003 until February 2004,
Mr. TSUKIOKA held the post as executive director of Isuzu's
technology development planning department and design center.
From April 2005 until March 2006, he served as the Area Operations
Executive of the North America. From April 2006 until the present,
Mr. TSUKIOKA has been the executive vice president and director
of Isuzu.

Mr. LIU Guangming, aged 58, has been an executive Director since
28 April 1994. Mr. LIU is a deputy general manager of the Company,
a chairman of a member of the Group as well as deputy chairman
and deputy general manager of Qingling Group. He is also a member
of the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. LIU is a senior
economist and the vice chairman of the Chongging Management
Association and has over 30 years of experience in corporate
management and personnel management. He studied in universities
in Japan, the United States and Chongging and was previously a
division head, deputy secretary of the Party Committee and deputy
factory manager and secretary of the Party Committee of Qingling
Group.

Mr. PAN Yong, aged 61, has been an executive Director since 28
April 1994. Mr. PAN is a deputy general manager of the Company,
a chairman of a few members of the Group as well as a director
and deputy general manager of Qingling Group. Mr. PAN is a senior
economist, has more than 31 years of experience in corporate
management and sales of Qingling Group. Mr. PAN graduated from
Hunan University, specialising in automobile studies.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YUE Huagiang, aged 67, has been an executive Director since
28 April 1994. Mr. YUE is also an assistant to the general manager
of the Company, a director of various members of the Group as well
as a deputy chief accountant of Qingling Group. Mr. YUE is a senior
accountant and has more than 38 years of experience in corporate
financial management. Mr. YUE who graduated from Sichuan
Finance and Trade School in 1964 and attended the PRC training
programme for chief accountants. He has been an accounting
supervisor, head of the financial division, deputy chief accountant
and chief accountant of the Company.

Mr. LONG Tao, aged 60, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 28 April 1994. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LONG graduated from Research
Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance, majoring in
accounting. Mr. LONG holds a master’'s degree in economics.
He had served at Accountancy Division of Central University of
Finance and Economics, and New York office of KPMG Peat
Marwick. Mr. LONG had acted as a member of Securities Issue and
Approval Committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission
and member of Chinese accounting expert panel for China-
Hong Kong Securities Team. Mr. LONG is currently an associate
professor of the Accountancy Division of Central University of
Finance and Economics and the Chairman of Beijing Haiwen
Investment Consultants Inc.. Mr. LONG has extensive knowledge
and experience in corporate finance, accounting, audit, assets
appraisal, restructuring of enterprise and listing. Mr. LONG also
serves as the independent non-executive director of China Asset
Management Co., Ltd. Mr. LONG retired as the independent non-
executive director of Beijing Capital International Airport Company
Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 694) on 12
June 2008. Mr. LONG has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Beijing North Star Company Limited (listed on
the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 588) on 19 May 2009. Mr. LONG
resigned as an independent director of Asialnfo Holdings Inc. (listed
on NASDAQ, NASDAQ: ASIA) on 1 July 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, aged 61, has been an independent non-
executive Director since 28 April 1994. He is also the chairman
of the audit committee and the remuneration committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. SONG
is general manager of Chongqging Ping Zheng Law Office, a member
of the China Economic Law Association and the China Lawyers
Association, and a council member of the Chongging Lawyers
Association, a vice chairman of the Foreign Affairs Committee of
Chongging Lawyers Association and a member of the Chongaging
Legal Academy. Mr. SONG has been a lawyer and notary for 26
years. Mr. SONG graduated from South West Institute of Political
Science and Law and also studied international law in the China
University of Political Science and Law and foreign economic law at
Shenzhen University. He was formerly vice chairman of Chongaging
Notary Office and vice chairman of Chongging Foreign Law Office.

Mr. XU Bingjin, aged 73, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 22 September 2004. He is also a member of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. XU is the president of China Europe
Economic Association for Technical and Economic Cooperation,
vice president of the World Trade Organization Institute, part-
time professor of Shanghai Foreign Trade College and senior
consultant of Northeastern University. He holds a Bachelor Degree
in Engineering Economics from Jilin Industrial University and is a
senior engineer. Mr. XU has been a former assistant to the minister
of the Ministry of China Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation,
deputy chief of the Delegation of China Entry to GATT and the
Delegation of China Entry to WTO. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Brilliance China Automotive Holdings
Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1114).

Mr. LIU Tianni, aged 48, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 31 May 2011. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LIU is currently the founder and
chairman of Wonderful Sky Financial Group Limited, an executive
director of Silver Grant International Industries Limited (listed on
the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 171) and the managing director
of Sure Spread Company Limited. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Chongging lron & Steel Company Limited
(listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1053). Mr. LIU
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

graduated from Beijing Normal University with a master degree
in science. He has over 16 years of experience in finance, trade
businesses and corporate administration. In October 2008, Mr.
LIU was awarded “Outstanding Young Chinese Entrepreneur of
the World” by Asiaweek, as an acknowledgement of his excellent
corporate management and prominent business strategies.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. MIN Qing, aged 44, has been the Supervisor representing
the Shareholders since 15 June 2006 and is also the Chairman
of the Supervisory Committee. Ms. MIN is the deputy secretary
of the Party Committee and the Chairman of the Workers Union
of Qingling Group. She has 23 years of experience in corporate
management. Ms. MIN graduated from Chongging Communication
College in Mechanical Engineering in 1988 and had undergraduates
education. She also studied corporate management in Japan.

Ms. ZHOU Hong, aged 60, has been a Supervisor representing
the Shareholders since 11 June 1997. Ms. ZHOU is the deputy
secretary of the Communist Party Discipline Commission of the
Company and a political specialist. She has 36 years of experience
in management. Ms. ZHOU graduated from Sichuan Party Cadre
Distant Learning Institute in 1988, specializing in economic
management.

Mr. ZHANG Wanjin, aged 37, has been a Supervisor representing
the staff and workers of the Company since 16 June 2009. Mr.
ZHANG graduated from the chemical engineering department of
Wuhan Automotive Polytechnic University in 1998 and Chongging
University in 2007 majoring corporate finance management
and received bachelor degrees in engineering and business
administration respectively. Mr. ZHANG joined the Company in June
1998 and served as the secretary of the office of the Company, the
deputy chief economist and the director of the office of Qingling
Group.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’'S REPORT

Dear Shareholders:

Since the establishment of the Supervisory Committee, each
member has been performing his duty in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association with a view of protecting the
interests of shareholders and the Company. We have attended
the board meetings and have given our opinions regarding the
operations, technological reform and development of the Company
during board meetings. We have also monitored the guiding
ideology of the management and considered whether the decisions
made by the management were in compliance with state laws and
whether they were appropriate for the development of the Company
and were in the interests of shareholders.

According to its power, the Supervisory Committee has reviewed
evidence of the Company’s accounts, books, reports and other
accounting information from time to time. In our opinion, the
financial statements have been properly prepared while the
accounting principles and the method of financial management
adopted are in compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

We have carefully examined the financial statements, the
Directors’ Report and the proposal for appropriation of profit to
be presented before the forthcoming annual general meeting by
the Board of Directors. In our opinion, the chairman of the board,
directors, managers and senior management have not engaged
in any malpractices which would be prejudicial to the interests of
shareholders and employees of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance as
well as the economic results of the Company, and we are confident
about the future development of the Company.

MIN Qing

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
Chongging, the PRC

26 March 2012
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) present their
annual report and audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu
light, medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose
vehicles and diesel and petrol engines. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity are set out in notes 33 and
18 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 43. The directors of the Company recommend the payment
of a final dividend of RMBO0.12 per share to the shareholders on the
register of members on 19 June 2012, amounting to approximately
RMB297,872,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB168,725,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion of its
production facilities.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property,
plant and equipment and investment properties of the Group are set
out in note 14 and note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

According to the Company's Articles of Association, the amount of
profit available for distribution shall be deemed to be the amount
of profit determined in accordance with the relevant accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable to companies
established in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC GAAP").
The Company’s profit available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 December 2011 was the retained profit of approximately
RMB1,570,960,000 (2010, approximately RMB1,502,162,000).

The profit of the Company for a financial year shall be applied in
accordance with the following order:

() making up losses;

(i) allocation to statutory surplus reserve fund,;

(iii)  if there are preference shares, payment of dividends in respect
of preference shares;

(iv) allocation to discretionary surplus reserve fund; and

(v)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

The detailed proportion of distribution in respect of items (ii) to (v)
above for any financial year shall be formulated by the Board in
accordance with the operational conditions of the Company and its
development requirements and shall be submitted to shareholders’
general meeting for approval.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

WU Yun (Chairman)

GAO Jianmin

Makoto TANAKA (General Manager)

Masanori KATAYAMA (resigned on 2 March 2011)

Ryozo TSUKIOKA (appointed on 2 March 2011)

LIU Guangming
PAN Yong
YUE Huagiang

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni (appointed on 31 May 2011)

Supervisors:
MIN Qing

ZHOU Hong
ZHANG Wanijin
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

All the Directors, other than Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA and Mr. LIIU
Tianni were re-elected as Directors to hold office from the date
of the annual general meeting for 2009 to the date of the annual
general meeting for 2012.

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 2 March 2011 (the
"EGM"), Mr. Masanori KATAYAMA resigned as an executive
Director. Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA was appointed as executive Director
to hold office from the date of the EGM to the date of the annual
general meeting for 2012.

At the annual general meeting held on 31 May 2011, Mr. LIU Tianni
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director to hold
office from the date of the 2011 AGM to the date of the annual
general meeting for 2012.

All the Supervisors were re-elected or appointed as Supervisors to
hold office from the date of the annual general meeting for 2009 to
the date of the annual general meeting for 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

According to the Company’'s articles of association, the term of
office of each of the Directors and Supervisors of the current
term will expire at the date of the annual general meeting for
2012 and shall be eligible for re-election. Mr. YUE Huagiang, who
is a retiring Director, and Mr. ZHANG Wanjin who is a retiring
Supervisor representing the staff and workers of the Company, have
notified the Company that due to retirement and maturity rotation
respectively, they shall retire from their office of Director and
Supervisor respectively on the date of the annual general meeting
for 2012 and have not sought for re-election. Except for Mr. YUE
Huagiang and Mr. ZHANG Wanjin, the other retiring Directors and
Supervisors are eligible and have sought for re-election.

The Board has nominated Mr. WU Yun, Mr. GAO Jianmin, Mr.
Makoto TANAKA, Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA, Mr. LIU Guangming, Mr.
PAN Yong, Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. XU Bingjin and
Mr. LIU Tianni, being the other retiring Directors, as the candidates
for election as Directors for the next term of office commencing
from the date of the annual general meeting for 2012 to the date
of the annual general meeting of the Company in 2015 (the “Next
Term”). As mentioned above, Mr. YUE Huagiang shall retire from
his office of Director on the date of the annual general meeting for
2012 and has not sought for re-election.

Isuzu, a substantial Shareholder, has nominated Mr. Naotoshi
TSUTSUMI as a candidate for election as a new Director for the
Next Term. Therefore, the Board has proposed Mr. Naotoshi
TSUTSUMI as a candidate for election as a new Director for the
Next Term.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Supervisory Committee has nominated Ms. MIN Qing and
Ms. ZHOU Hong, being all the retiring Supervisors representing
the Shareholders, as the candidates for election as Supervisors
representing the Shareholders for the Next Term. As mentioned
above, Mr. ZHANG Wanijin shall retire from his office of Supervisor
on the date of the annual general meeting for 2012 and have
not sought for re-election. Therefore, the association of the
representatives of the staff and workers of the Company has
nominated Mr. LEI Bin as a candidate for democratic election as a
new Supervisor representing the staff and workers of the Company
for the Next Team.

The biographical details of the candidates proposed to be elected as
Directors and Supervisors are set out in the appendix to the circular
to be despatched to the Shareholders on 20 April 2012.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
except Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA and Mr. LIU Tianni, had renewed
their service contracts and appointment letters with the Company
respectively for a term of three years commencing on 16 June
2009.

Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA has entered his service contract with the
Company with effect from 2 March 2011 to the date of the annual
general meeting for 2012.

Mr. LIU Tianni has entered his appointment letter with the Company
with effect from 31 May 2011 to the date of the annual general
meeting for 2012.

All Supervisors had renewed or entered their appointment letters
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 16
June 2009.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has a service contract with
the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive directors as regards to their
independence to the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive directors is independent to the
Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors or the Supervisors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or Supervisor had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The details of Directors’ remuneration and highest paid individuals
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. All
of five highest individuals of the Company for both years were
Directors.



EEERE

BRRABERETERR

RZE——F+ZA=+—8"
ARARRREMEHREAZKS
1254  MARREE - EFHS
MATHA B LASN 2 R A IR 1R
FH M E KRG EI36 KT AR
RAREEHRDEZRAEE
ERMATRSEAARERERE
BT A% A D AR
W

ARABRMHEEFRIFR

RREE
Name of Shareholders

ERABE(RE)ERAA(EREE])

Qingling Motors (Group) Company
Limited ("Qingling Group”)

I+#REHEKRAGH(RTR])

Isuzu Motors Limited (“Isuzu”)

Richard L. Chilton, Jr.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, there were 125 Shareholders recorded in

the register of shareholders of the Company and the Shareholders

other than a Director, Supervisor or chief executive of the Company,

having an interest or short positions in 5% or more of the relevant

class of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the

register of interests in the shares and short positions required to be

kept by the Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

R R
Class of
shares

NER

Domestic
shares

HNERR (HER)

Foreign shares
(H shares)

HAR

H shares

HP%
H shares

H%
H shares

Frisin e
Number of
shares held

1,243,616,403 %
1,243,616,403 shares

496,453,654%
496,453,654 shares

74,528, 0008% (#7:t)
74,528,000 shares
(Note)

74,528,0000% ()
74,528,000 shares
(Note)

74,528,0008% (f#7:2)
74,528,000 shares
(Note)

EERERMN
REBDL
Percentage of
the relevant

EL) class of
Capacity share capital
ERBEAA 100.00%
Beneficial 100.00%
owner
EEHAA 40.08%
Beneficial 40.08%
owner
X 6.02%
EEER 6.02%
Interest of
controlled
corporation
R 6.02%
EERR 6.02%
Interest of
controlled
corporation
REgE 6.02%
Investment 6.02%
manager

L8R
BOl
Percentage of
entire

share capital

50.10%
50.10%

20.00%
20.00%

3.00%
3.00%

3.00%
3.00%

3.00%
3.00%
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)

Note:

The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares of the Company held by Richard
L. Chilton, Jr.:

RIDED B
Total interest in shares
ZEHEDH HiEES R
ZRBRRER Percentage Direct Indirect
Name of controlling shareholder of control interest interest
Richard L. Chilton, Jr. 49.80% — 74,528,000
Chilton Investment Company, Inc. 61.06% — 74,528,000

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2011.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or Supervisors had any
interest in any business which compete or may compete with the
business of the Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee (composed of one executive Director
and four independent non-executive Directors) on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had connected transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries, Isuzu, Qingling Isuzu
(Chongging) Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd (“Qingling Isuzu
Sales”), a jointly controlled entity formed and jointly controlled by
the Company and Isuzu, and Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co.,
Ltd. ("Qingling Isuzu Engine”), a jointly controlled entity formed and
jointly controlled by the Company and Isuzu. Qingling Group and
Isuzu held 50.10% and 20.00% of the issued share capital of the
Company respectively as at 31 December 2011. Details of these
transactions are as follows:

(a)  Significant connected transactions with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries:

At the time of reorganisation, the Group entered into a service
agreement with Qingling Group in relation to the sales of parts
and raw materials for the manufacture of automobile parts by
Qingling Group. In addition, the Group had also entered into a
parts supply agreement with Qingling Group whereby Qingling
Group agreed to provide the Group with certain parts and
components produced by Qingling Group which are required
in the production processes of the Group. On 23 December
2010, the Group entered into new parts supply agreements
with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries respectively, which
were approved by the Company’s general meeting held on 2
March 2011.

On 23 December 2010, the Company also entered into a
warehouse leasing agreement with Qingling Group whereby
the Company agreed to lease warehouses from Qingling
Group for a period of three years.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)

Significant connected transactions with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

Details of connected transactions with Qingling Group during
the year are set out in note 29(i)(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the vyear, the Company had certain connected
transactions with some of the sino-foreign joint venture
companies which are subsidiaries of Qingling Group. These
companies include EEEREBEBRAR, EEERBEEAR
nA, EEERERAERAR, ERERAEERERAR, =
EERBHAEMRAT and EEERBEAGMRAFT. Detals of
these transactions are set out in note 29(i)(b) to 29(i)(g) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Significant connected transactions with Isuzu:

On 23 December 2010, the Company has renewed an
automobile parts and components supply agreement with
Isuzu whereby Isuzu agreed to provide the Company with
certain automobile parts and components produced by Isuzu
and which are required in the production processes of the
Group. This agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders by poll on 2 March 2011.

On 23 December 2010, the Company has also renewed an
accessory sets and other automobile parts and components
supply agreement with Isuzu whereby the Company agreed to
provide Isuzu with certain accessory sets and other automobile
parts and components produced by the Company and which
are required in the production processes of Isuzu. This
agreement was approved by the independent shareholders by
poll on 2 March 2011.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(b)

Significant connected transactions with Isuzu: (Cont'd)

During the year, the Company had certain connected
transactions with Isuzu of royalty fee for the transfer of
technology and provision of technical know-how and the
permission to use the trademark of Isuzu and the emblem
by Isuzu to the Company for the production and in the sales
of 100P-N/R series light vehicles, 140 TF/UC series vehicles,
F series Chassis, 700P series vehicles and related parts and

components.

Details of connected transactions with Isuzu during the
year are set out in note 29(ii) to the consolidated financial

statements.

Significant connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine:

Since November 2007, connected transactions have been
carried out between the Company and the Qingling Isuzu
Engine in respect of (i) the ongoing supply transactions namely
the supply of parts of engines and raw materials to and the
purchase of engines and their parts from Qingling Isuzu
Engine, (i) the ongoing consolidated services namely the
provision of consolidated services to Qingling Isuzu Engine,
(iii) the ongoing equipment lease namely the rental of leased
equipment to Qingling Isuzu Engine, and (iv) the ongoing
factory lease namely the lease of the leased land and factory
premises to Qingling Isuzu Engine.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(c)

The

Significant connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine:
(Cont'd)

On 23 December 2010, the Company entered into following
agreements with Qingling the Supply
(2) the Consolidated Services Agreement; (3)

Isuzu Engine: (1)
Agreement;
the Equipment Lease Agreement; and (4) the Factory Lease
Agreement. All these agreements were approved by the
independent shareholders by poll on 2 March 2011.

Details of connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine
during the year are set out in note 29(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Significant connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales:

On 23 December 2010, the Company entered into following
agreements with Qingling Isuzu Sales: (1) the Pre-leasing
Agreement; (2) the Consolidated Service Agreement whereby
the Company agreed to provide Qingling Isuzu Sales with: (i)
transportation services; (ii) equipment repair and maintenance
services; (iii) medical and hygiene services; and (iv) the three

Warranties and etc.

Details of connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales
during the year are set out in note 29(iv) to the consolidated
financial statements.

directors confirm that the

independent non-executive

transactions have been entered into by the Company in the ordinary
course of its business, on normal commercial terms or on terms

no less favorable than terms available to or from independent

third parties, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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FIVE LARGEST SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the five largest suppliers
accounted for 52% of the total purchases of the Group. The largest
supplier accounted for 22% of the total purchases. Qingling Group,
a jointly controlled entity of the Company and a Japanese trading
company, through which Isuzu channels its supply of parts and
components to the Group, are included in the five largest suppliers
of the Group. Details of transactions with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries and with Isuzu are set out in the section “Connected
Transactions” above. Other than disclosed above, the Company's
directors and supervisors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital), did not have any interests in the Group's
five largest suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2011.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were less than
30% of the Group’s total sales.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Group did not issue or grant any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the year.

There were no outstanding or conversion of convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the Company
or its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity during the year.
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DESIGNATED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not hold any designated
deposits or any time deposits that were overdue but could not be
collected upon maturity.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, none of the Company or its subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities had purchased, sole or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has 3,048 employees (2010:
2,923 employees). During the year, no material change is noted for
the number of employees nor their remuneration policy. The Group
actively provides various training to its staff of all levels.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Group's staff retirement benefits scheme are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquires to all directors
and supervisors, the Company confirms that all directors and
supervisors have complied with the requirements of the Model
Code during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code
of Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules during the year.

Further information on the Company's corporate governance
practices is set out in the “corporate governance report” from
pages 32 to 40.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, there is sufficient public
float as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares are held
by the public throughout the year 2011.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The audit committee has reviewed with the management and
auditors of the Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls
and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2012 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. and Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board
WU Yun
CHAIRMAN

Chongging, the PRC
26 March 2012
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The Company endeavors to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and to increase transparency to its shareholders. The
Company has adopted sound governance and disclosure practices,
and is committed to continuously improve those practices and
cultivate an ethical corporate culture.

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules for the time being inforce in the year 2011.

Rule 19A.18(1) of the Listing Rules provides that, among others,
at least one of the independent non-executive directors of a PRC
issuer must be ordinarily resident in Hong Kong. In order to appoint
a suitable candidate as the fourth independent non-executive
director for the purpose of complying with Rule 19.18(1) of the
Listing Rules, Article 94 of the Articles of Association has been
amended to increase the number of directors that comprise the
Board, with effect from 10 March 2011. The Board has approved the
appointment of Mr. LIU Tianni as an independent executive director
with effect from the date of the 2011 AGM to the date of the 2012
AGM.

Below is the summary of the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company in 2011.

THE BOARD

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval
and monitoring of the Company’s overall strategies and policies,
approval of annual budgets and business plans, evaluation of the
performance of the Company, and oversight of the work of the
management.
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The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management. The management team must meet regularly with
executive directors to review and discuss on day-to-day operations
issues, financial and operating performance as well as to monitor
and ensure the management in carrying out the directions and
strategies set by the Board correctly and properly.

The Board comprises eleven Directors, out of which seven are
executive Directors (including the Chairman and the General
Manager) and four are independent non-executive Directors. For
name list and profile of the existing members of the Board, please
refer to the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management”. In accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules, an independent non-executive
director must be confirmed by the Board to have no direct or
indirect material relationship with the Company before being
considered to be independent. The Company has received written
confirmation from each independent non-executive Director of
his independence and considered all independent non-executive
Directors are independent to the Company. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/related relationship existing
among the Directors.

The Board should meet regularly, and board meeting should be
held at least four times a year. The Board held four meetings in
2011, and the attendance rate of Directors (including attendance by
representatives) was 100%.

The Board has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors and Supervisors. After making
specific enquiries with all Directors and Supervisors, the Company
has confirmed that the Directors and Supervisors complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during 2011.
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CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. WU Yun and Mr. Makoto TANAKA hold the positions of
Chairman of the Board and General Manager, which are two clearly
separate positions, respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for leading, and overseeing the
operations of the Board, effectively planning the Board meetings
and ensuring the Board is acting in the best interests of the
Company. The Chairman shall proactively encourage Directors
to fully participate in the Board's affairs and make contribution
to the functions of the Board. The Board, under the Chairman’s
leadership, has adopted good corporate governance practices and
procedures and has taken appropriate steps to maintain effective
communication with the shareholders.

The General Manager is responsible for managing the business
of the Company, as well as formulating and implementing the
Company’s policies and is answerable to the Board in relation to the
overall management of the Company. The General Manager of the
Company works in close association with other executive Directors
and the administrative team of each core business division, ensuring
the funding requirements of the business of the Company are
sufficiently met and at the same time closely monitor the operation
and financial results of the Company according to business plans
and budgets, and advise the Board on matters in relation to the
Company’s development. The General Manager of the Company
is required to keep close communication with the Chairman
and all Directors to keep them fully informed of all substantive
matters relating to the Company’s business development, and
is also responsible for building and maintaining a highly efficient
administrative support team to support him to discharge the
assigned duties in this position.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Article 95 of the Company's Articles of Association stipulates that
Directors shall be elected at the shareholders’ general meeting for
a term of three years. Upon expiry of the term, a director shall be
eligible for re-election. Accordingly, all Directors are appointed for a
specific term.
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In 2011, the Company does not have a nomination committee.
The Board shall have the collective responsibility to consider and
assess the candidates for directorships based on their characters,
qualifications and experience appropriate for the Group's
businesses, and nominate candidates for directorships accordingly.
Candidates for directorship are subject to election by shareholders
at shareholders’ general meeting.

All directors, other than Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA and Mr. LIU Tianni,
were all re-elected and appointed at the 2009 AGM. Their current
terms of office will last until the date of the 2012 AGM.

In 2011, in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, Isuzu, a substantial shareholder, nominated Mr. Ryozo
TSUKIOKA as a candidate to replace Mr. Masanori KATAYAMA as
an executive director. Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA was elected by the
Company and approved by the shareholders to be an executive
director at the extraordinary general meeting held on 2 March 2011,
whose term of office will last until the date of the 2012 AGM.

In 2011, in order to appoint a suitable candidate as the fourth
independent non-executive Director for the purpose of complying
with Rule 19A.18(1) of the Listing Rules, Mr. LIU Tianni was
elected by the Company and approved by the shareholders to be an
independent non-executive director at the 2011 AGM, whose term
of office will last until the date of the 2012 AGM.

In order to comply with the amendments to the Listing Rules, which
will take effect as from 1 April 2012, the Company established
its nomination committee on 26 March 2012. The nomination
committee comprises one executive Director of the Company,
namely Mr. WU Yun, and four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr.
LIU Tianni. Duties of the nomination committee were formulated
pursuant to the recommendations set out in the Code issued by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and the main duties include the
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following: to review the structure, size and composition including
the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board at least annually,
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy; indentify
individuals suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors; and make recommendations
to the board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the
chief executive.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its remuneration committee on 20 April
2006. The remuneration committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr. LIU Tianni) and one executive
Director (namely Mr. LIU Guangming). Mr. SONG Xiaojiang serves
as the chairman of the remuneration committee. Duties of the
remuneration committee were formulated pursuant to the Code
issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the main duties include
the following: to make recommendations to the Board in respect
of the remuneration system and policy for the Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; to determine
the specific remunerations for all executive Directors and senior
management members, including benefits in kind, pension right
and compensation payment; to ensure that no Director or any of
this associate is involved in deciding his own remuneration; other
recommended duties set out in various provisions of the Code.

The remuneration committee held one meeting in 2011. Attendance
rate of the members of the Remuneration Committee was 100%.
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In order to comply with the amendments to the Listing Rules, which
will take effect as from 1 April 2012, the Company amended certain
terms of reference of the remuneration committee on 26 March
2012.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The supervisory committee comprises three members, two of
whom are representatives of the shareholders (namely Ms. MIN
Qing and Ms. ZHOU Hong) and one of whom is the representative
of the staff and workers (namely Mr. ZHANG Wanjin). Ms. MIN Qing
serves as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee. During 2011,
the Supervisors of the Company exercised their right of supervision
in accordance with the laws to protect the legal interests of the
shareholders, the Company and the employees. The details of the
work of the Supervisory Committee are set out in the Supervisory
Committee’s Report in this annual report.

The Supervisory Committee held two meetings in 2011. Attendance
rate of the supervisors was 100%.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with specific
terms of reference in accordance with the Listing Rules. The audit
committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors,
who possess appropriate commercial and financial skills and
experience to understand financial statements. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. SONG Xiaojiang and other members are Mr. LONG
Tao, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr. LIU Tianni.

The terms of reference of the audit committee include the duties
to recommend the engagement and replacement of external
audit firms, oversee the Company’'s internal auditing system and
implementation, verify the Company's financial information and
disclosure, examine the Company’s internal control system, and
take charge and act as a communication channel between internal
and external auditors.
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The audit committee held two meetings in 2011 to review the final
results for 2010 and the 2011 interim report. Attendance rate of the
members of the audit committee was 100%.

In order to comply with the amendments to the Listing Rules, which
will take effect as from 1 April 2012, the Company amended certain
terms of reference of the audit committee on 26 March 2012.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The external auditors currently appointed by the Company are
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. and Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as its PRC and international auditors respectively.
In order to maintain their independence, these accountants do
not take on non-audit work. The work the external auditors are
engaged to perform must produce measurable efficiency and added
value to the Company and should not cause adverse effect on
the independence or independent standing of their audit function.
The remunerations of the auditors are disclosed in the financial
statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility in overseeing the
operation of all business units under the Company’s management. It
shall appoint suitable qualified personnel to serve on the boards of
all subsidiaries and associated companies operating in key business
areas, attending their board meetings to oversee the operations
of these companies. The management in each business division is
accountable for the operations and performance of the business
within its area of responsibility.
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The Company’s management has implemented a system of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that the Group's assets are
safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, applicable
laws and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information
are provided for the Company's management for publication
purposes and investment and business risks affecting the Group are
identified and properly managed.

The Directors of the Company review the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries at least
once every year. The scope of a review includes financial control,
operation control, compliance control and risks management
functions. The Board will also consider the sufficiency with respect
to the resources on accounting and financial reporting functions,
the staff's qualification and experience and the training programs
offered to them as well as the budget. As at 26 March 2012, the
Board has completed the aforementioned review for 2011 and the
Board is of the view that the Company’s internal control system
can properly and effectively safeguard the investments of the
shareholders and the assets of the Group.

DIRECTOR’ S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

With the assistance of the accounting department, the Board is
responsible for preparing the financial statements for each financial
year and ensuring that, in preparing such financial statements,
appropriate accounting policies are adopted and applied and the
PRC accounting standards and systems and International Financial
Reporting Standards are observed, to give a true and fair view of
the financial position and operating results of the Company. The
statement of the auditors about their responsibilities on the Group's
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on pages 41 to 42.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

After announcement of the Company’s interim and annual financial
results, the Company has proactively arranged for briefing meetings
for people from the investment community at regular intervals,
using the opportunity to promote investor relations and two-way
communication. The Company, through the investor relations
manager, responds to the information requests and inquiries
from the investment community. The Company also publishes
information such as the Company’s announcements and circulars on
its website in a timely manner under the requirements of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend the annual general
meeting in which the Chairman and Directors will be onhand
to answer questions about the Company's business raised by
shareholders. The Company distributes annual and interim reports to
shareholders in a timely manner for their inspection.

In 2012, the Company will continue to dedicate efforts into
enhancing the standard of its corporate governance according to the
ongoing regulatory changes, development trend of the Company,
and feedback opinions from shareholders, ensuring a stable and
healthy growth for the Company while adding value to shareholders.

By Order of the Board
WU Nianqing
Company Secretary

Chongaing, the PRC
26 March 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF QINGLING MOTORS CO., LTD.

BRSERDERA A
(@ Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited company established
in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qingling
Motors Co., Ltd. (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 126, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
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contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2011 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Wizt

NOTES

Revenue 5,6
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research expenses

Profit before tax 8
Income tax expense 7

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Basic earnings per share 13

“E-—f HE-Z-Zf
A=t—HB +=A=+-H
LFE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
ARETFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
8,148,839 6,107,141
(7,140,510) (5,246,792)
1,008,329 860,349
164,457 144,452
71 91)
(576,586) (486,602)
(166,634) (154,547)
(12,705) (8,150)
416,932 355,411
(60,782) (52,088)
356,150 303,323
353,658 301,666
2,492 1,657
356,150 303,323
RMBO0.14 RMBO0.12
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Bills receivables
Prepaid lease payments
Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade, bills and other payables
Tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

it
NOTES

14
15
16
17
25

19
20
21
15

22
26

24

23

—E-—-f —E-Zf
t=A=t+-B t=A=+-H
31/12/2011  31/12/2010
ABETFT  ARETE
RMB'000 RMB'000
1,607,576 1,726,369
46,192 47,675
40,654 46,828
34,675 43,780
2,330 4,322
1,731,427 1,868,874
904,881 1,271,416
910,332 646,981
2,415,438 1,207,181
1383 1383
3,326,687 3,707,722
848,928 1,683,709
8,407,649 8,518,392
2,559,957 2,915,964
33,624 88528
2,593,581 2,949,487
5,814,068 5,568,905
7,545,495 7,437,779
2,482,268 2,482,268
4,771,285 4,665,854
7,253,553 7,148,122
291,942 289,657
7,645,495 7,437,779

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 126 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
March 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

LIU Guangming DIRECTOR
PAN Yong DIRECTOR
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At 1 January 2010
Profit for the year,
representing total
comprehensive
income for
the year
Appropriation for the year
Unclaimed H shares
dividend
of prior year
2009 final dividend paid

(Fiz£12) (Note 12)
—FANBAR IR ER Dividend paid by
ke a subsidiary
to non-controlling
interest

At 31 December 2010

Profit for the year,
representing total
comprehensive income
for the year

FRan - DERRa 8k

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

FEAR Appropriation for the year
TR=E-ZEREHS 2010 final dividend paid
(Hi12) (Note 12)

~HHBA AR ER
S5

RZF—F+ZA=1—-H

Dividend paid by a
subsidiary to
non-controlling interest

At 31 December 2011

EE

BEADNBEESEEE —SFHARY
572,206,000L( =T —ZTF : AR
#572,206,0007C) ;KB - hTE A E
EEERIERBEEARRQREKL
AMEERASE(EE)AERARA(E
REBDRERABEARAA(E
BRDBARDRAMEEFENES
—NANAMEFESHN D - LBREADQ
& B SZ B BT 3% 77 1,500,000,000 f% #9
& A R #1,500,000,000 7¢ 2 #8 H

B9 -

(a)
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NAREEEAEERE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FERER

A RE

Equity

AELMEE  [EEAES attributable
KA  RAHRE EADEE  Statutory Discretionary  RERF tonon-  EHAE
Share Share Capital surplus surplus Retained @3t controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve fund reserve fund profits Total interests Equity
ANRETT ANEBTT ARETT AREFT ABRETT AREFT ARETrT AREFT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

(Hita) — (WiE10)  (H211)
(note a) (note 10) (note 11)
2482268 1,764,905 572,239 775,703 2,347 1447574 7,045,036 290247 7,335,283
— — — - — 301,666 301,666 1,657 303,323
— — — 33,305 — (33,308) = - -
— — — = — 1 1 - 1
= = - - (198,581) (198,581) - (198,581)
= = = = = = = (2,247) (2,247)
2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 809,008 2,347 1,517,355 7,148,122 289,657 7431,779
- — — — — 353,658 353,658 2492 356,150
= - 34,906 - (34,906) - = -
= = = = = (248,227) (248,227 = (248,227)
= = = = = = = (207) (207)
2482268 1,764,905 572,239 843914 2,347 1,587,880 7,263,553 291942 7,545,795
Note:

(a) The capital reserve mainly includes an amount of approximately

RMB572,206,000 (2010: RMB572,206,000) which represents the excess of the
value of the net assets immediately before the establishment of the Company
injected into the Company by E#2/38(5E)ARAA)("Qingling Group”) and
E$RAE AR A R("Qingling”) as part of the reorganisation in 1994 which was
approved by the State Administration of State-owned Assets, over the nominal
value of the 1,500,000,000 shares issued upon establishment of the Company of
RMB1,500,000,000.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Release of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of investment properties
Allowance for obsolete inventories
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase in bills receivables

(Decrease) increase in trade, bills and
other payables

Cash (used in) generated from operations
Income taxes paid

NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

BE-Z——-% HZE-2-%%
+=ZBA=+-B +=A=+-H
LFE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
ARETFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
416,932 355,411
(112,196) (100,639)
287,498 299,306

— 5,161

9,105 10,612

1,383 1,383

6,174 6,174

— 15,627

17 (622)

608,913 592,313
366,535 (732,021)
(260,002) (295,108)
(1,208,257) (536,011)
(363,562) 1,192,372
(856,373) 221,545
(58,690) (37,699)
(915,083) 183,846




mMEBEERER
HZE2011E12A31B LEE

REXH

FARITEHRER

FRERERTTIE T 0

BEME  BERK

REEVEE

MEHA
YRARFERLENZ - BE kRN EKR

HENE  BERRBHAERR

REXBHE (FR) REBRE

MEXHK

ERERE
REEEE G ¥)
EFRARREZ HERRE

BEXBHAZRAEFR

RERREESEWHD RE

R-A-BZRERAEEEY

RY=R=+-BZRERREEEN
MBTEBRRS

47

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Placement in fixed deposit with banks
Withdrawal in fixed deposit with banks
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible asset

Interest received

Collection of receivables from disposal of property,

plant and equipment in prior years
Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholder
Unclaimed H shares dividend of prior year

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by
bank balances and cash

BE2-Z—-% HE-Z-EF%
t=B=t+-8 +t=A=+-H
LFE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
ARETFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
(5,467,184) (3,655,553)
5,863,120 2,949,364
(164,518) (43,616)
= (3,302)

97,295 88,922

— 26,368

3 —

328,716 (637,817)
(248,227) (198,581)
(207) (2,247)

— 1

(248,434) (200,827)
834,781 654,798
1,683,709 2,338,507
848,928 1,683,709
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

1. GENERAL

The Company was registered at 1 Xiexing Cun, Zhong Liang Shan,
Jiu Long Po District, Chongging, the PRC and engaged in the
production and sales of Isuzu light-duty trucks, multi-purposes
vehicles, pick-up trucks, medium and heavy-duty trucks, other
vehicles and automobile parts and accessories. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and joint controlled entities are set out in
notes 33 and 18 respectively.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the Company is
Qingling Group (a state-owned enterprise established in Chongging,
the PRC).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB") which is also the functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations (New and
Revised HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") that are mandatorily effective for
2011 financial year end:

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010

HKAS 24 (Revised 2009) Related Party Disclosure

HKAS 32 (Amendments)  Classification of Rights Issues

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
(Amendments)

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont’d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

instruments

HKAS 24 (Revised 2009) has been revised on the following two
aspects:

a)

HKAS 24 (Revised 2009) has changed the definition of a
related party.

In addition, HKAS 24 (Revised 2009) introduces a partial
exemption from the disclosure requirements for government-
related entities whilst the previous version of HKAS 24
did not contain specific exemption for government-related
entities. The Company and its subsidiaries are government-
related entities as defined in HKAS 24 (Revised 2009). Under
HKAS 24 (Revised 2009), the Group has been exempted from
making the disclosures required by paragraph 18 of HKAS 24
(Revised 2009) in relation to related party transactions and
outstanding balances (including commitments) with (a) the
PRC government that ultimately has control over the Group
and (b) other entities that are controlled, jointly controlled, or
significantly influenced by the PRC government. Rather, in
respect of these transactions and balances, HKAS 24 (Revised
2009) requires the Group to disclose (a) the nature and amount
of each individually significant transaction, and (b) a qualitative
or quantitative indication of the extent of transactions that are
collectively, but not individually, significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

HKAS 24 (Revised 2009) requires retrospective application. The
application of HKAS 24 (Revised 2009) has had no impact on the
Group'’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years. Details of related party disclosures are set out in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The application of the New and Revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material effect on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following New and Revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets’

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of

(Amendments) HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures®
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

L SE— L A-ARNERKZ *
T EAm AR A K o

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

? —E—=F-—A—H¥UERBZ 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
FEERRER -

° —E-RAF-—A—HRUERBZ 8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
FEERRER -

4 —E——F—F—HEUBHBZ 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
FEERRER -

5 —E——F+t A —HEUBHBZ 5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
FEERRER -

¢ —E-ME-A—BRUERBZ 6  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

FEHREER -

R-ZZFE——FX A AhEBEEHEA
B BERE  BELENER
LB ERG  BREEEMBRE
ZRIF105E - FEM B RS EL
F115  FEMBRELERE12
% BR G ERF27H(=F
——FB5) REB ST ERFE28
B(ZF——FEF]) °

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) and
HKAS 28 (Revised 2011).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial
statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that contains
three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c)
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor's returns. Extensive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK (SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control should
be classified. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified
as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under
HKAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled
operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas
jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using
the equity method of accounting or proportionate accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted provided that all
of these five standards are applied early at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five standards
will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013. The application will
result in changes in the accounting of the Group’s jointly controlled
entities that are currently accounted for using proportionate
consolidation and more extensive disclosures. However, the
directors have not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of
the application of HKFRS 11 and hence have not yet quantified the
extent of the impact.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other New and Revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled
entities. The Group recognises its interests in jointly controlled
entities using the proportionate consolidation method. The Group’s
share of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of the jointly controlled entities are combined with the Group's
similar items in the consolidated financial statements on a line-by-
line basis. Transactions and balances between the Group and the
jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the jointly controlled entities.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group, and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’'s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress, except for
specialised production facilities and moulds, over their estimated
useful lives after taking into account of their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method.

Specialised production facilities and moulds which can be identified
in relation to specific production processes are depreciated by
reference to the expected production volume of these facilities and
moulds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

The estimated useful lives, residual values, the expected production
volume and the depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the assets (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

13. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Investment properties (Cont’d)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finances lease whenever the terms of lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.



e B IR MR

HZE2011E12A318 LEE

3. FEEFEERME
HE
A5 B 1F 3 A A

REMEFRAREREENHEY
NEREERR/AS - KEHD
PREEZ XAHE SN E L HIH#E
RBFX -

RIURZHORFKREE SR
B AAHESERREE &
BANmAERERRASHEEH

o

Mool o BK
=
©

/)

HELTHEREF

HEOEE L RETENL - Bl
AEERBHSHBONEEEMR
B 7 B0 B K BB 40 L B e B 2 B
EEBRTASENFG  BLK
SR o BEFEARENEEM
E BREARANTZZMEREREY
REEHRE  BEWBERT  BR
HERSDBAKEHE - AfEM
o REAENF(BREA K
BIEMRIR) THIREE L AR K
BFEROREHORGEROEER
mAEH AR BELR T RE
FROZEAE

HEER SED B EFE - (FRE
EHEARNEES DN
EMBRAKRANZIRIFANEE
REIXREREZNHE R R E#
8 e

59

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

13. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Leasing

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is released over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

13. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over
the useful lives of the related assets. Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

13. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt
with as payments to defined contribution plans where the Group's
obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary difference
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and
deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effective of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Intangible assets (Cont’d)
Research and development expenditure (Cont’d)

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees, points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets of the Group are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been negatively affected. The objective
evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.



e B IR MR

HZE2011E12A318 LEE

3. FESFEREME
SRIA(E)
LHEE(HE)
EREERE(E)

IRBHEAAINENEREEM
FOERAREBERZIERETIR
ZEEMREERRRLEERA
XFHANMBFRRRAERENS
ERIMNER -

IAEESREEMS SREE
MEEEEZRRBREBRRD
HE & IR SR N L b U R BR
Sh - HAREE J0 38 B E BB AR
Bmmd - BBREWEmEZ
BRBEARER - HE KRR K
H i & MR IR AR R R U el
AR BB B & - HR K E A
EZ A KR ABZEA o

BRBBHEHXNAFEZERE
EHREREE REEBEES
BB A o T RZOR A A] R B B R
RBEBREELEZEHMEH
AEpER 2 BEBREBED
REE - EZEENBEREHR
HeREEMNBAEY EHR
WEZBERTEE ZHEHEKARN -

THEREREH TA

TRBERAEEERTHEST
ANRBEEFTINAHNLEAR
AhksRBELESTANTER
DERERABEXERTA -

BuaTASBALAKEEER G
B (RHNBREMBRE) ZEM
B -AKBEZEMEETER
ETERR  BANREEEAMEN

A e

67

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable or other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group’s financial liabilities are mainly trade, bills and other
payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees, points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. On derecognition of a
financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to be
incurred to completion and disposal. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly as
a result of changes in customer taste or competitor actions in
response to severe consumer product industry cycles. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of the reporting period.
As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of inventory net
of allowance for obsolete inventories is RMB904,881,000 (2010:
RMB1,271,416,000).

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The impairment may arise as a result of changes in debtors' financial
position. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of trade
and other receivable is RMB910,332,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of RMB4,595,000) (31 December 2010: carrying
amount of RMB646,981,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts of
RMB4,595,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Depreciation basis of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than specialised production
facilities and moulds) are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual values. Specialised production facilities and moulds are
depreciated by reference to the expected production volume of
these facilities and moulds. The Group assesses annually the
expected production volume of these facilities and moulds, taking
into account the lifecycle and technical advantage of products. If
the expectation differs from the original estimates, such differences
from the original estimates will impact the depreciation charges
in the current year in which the estimates change and in future
periods. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the expected
production volume of specialised production facilities has been
changed and resulted in a decrease in depreciation charge for the
year ended 31 December 2011 of approximately RMB27,599,000
(see note 14).

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue arising on goods sold by the Group
to outside customers, net of discounts and sales related tax. The
following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products:

BE-2--F BE-Z-BF

+=ZRA=t—-HB t=ZA=t-H

LLFE LLFE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

ARETT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Sales of trucks and vehicles 7,217,655 5,825,200
Sales of automobile parts and accessories 931,184 281,941
8,148,839 6,107,141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sales of six categories
of products — light-duty trucks, multi-purposes vehicles, pick-
up trucks, medium and heavy-duty trucks, other vehicles and
automobile parts and accessories and the chief operating decision
maker (e.g. the Company's directors) also review the segment
information by these categories to allocate resources to segments
and to assess their performance. Certain items (including expenses,
assets and liabilities) related to the jointly controlled entities under
proportionate consolidation are not regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

Principal business segments are as follows:
Light-duty trucks — manufacture and sales of
light-duty trucks
Multi-purposes vehicles —  manufacture and sales of
multi-purposes vehicles
Pick-up trucks — manufacture and sales of
pick-up trucks
Medium and heavy-duty —  manufacture and sales of
trucks medium and heavy-duty trucks
Other vehicles manufacture and sales of
vehicles other than
those identified above
Automobile parts and — manufacture and sales of

accessories automobile parts and accessories
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(i) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by
operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2011

AE
2UBEE  SURRE K8 PERERNE  EfRE  BARBK &&
Multi- Medium and Automobile
Light-duty ~ purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty Other  parts and
trucks vehicles trucks trucks vehicles ~ accessories Consolidated

NEKTL  NEETT NEETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETx
RMB000  RMB000  AMB'000  RMB000  AMB000  AMB000  AMB'000

Segment revenue 3,801,231 14,834 2,066,006 1,373,644 — 893124 8,148,839
Segment result 108,326 1,834 182,091 22,083 — (13,977) 300,357
Central administration costs 69,083)
Interest income 107,726
Other income 51,649

Expenses incurred by jointly
controlled entities under
proportionate consolidation 16,254

Profit before tax 416,932
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(i) Segment revenues and results (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2010

AE
2UBEE  SURRE K8 PERERNE  EfRE  BARBK &&
Multi- Medium and Automobile

Light-duty ~ purposes Pick-up heavy-duty Other parts and

trucks vehicles trucks trucks vehicles  accessories Consolidated
NEETT  NEEFT  AEEFT  AREFT  ARETr  AREFT  ARETR
RVMBO00 ~ RMBO00  AMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000

Segment revenue 2,930,144 21,929 1,694,472 1,182,865 3

1<)

2 277369 6,107,141

Segment result 109,304 3914 123576 24,767 A8 (17,801) 244,008
Central administration costs (57,990)
Interest income 97,143
Other income 48303
Expenses incurred by jointly

controlled entities under

proportionate consolidation 23947
Profit before tax 355,411

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
result represents the profit earned by or loss from each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, interest income
and the expenses incurred by the jointly controlled entities under
proportionate consolidation. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment.
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HE2011F12A831HIEFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
6. 7HER ) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(ii) oHPEERERE (ii) Segment assets and liabilities
AEBEEREBBERREES D The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
wmr operating segment:
RZE——F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2071
e
BUERE  SYRNE B+E BIREHE  BHRHH &8
Medium
Light- Multi- and heavy-  Automobile
duty  purposes Pick-up duty  partsand
trucks vehicles trucks trucks ~ accessories Consolidated

NRETE  ARETT  ARETT ARETZ ARETZ ARETR
RMBO00  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBUOD  AMBUOD

g Assets
ABEE Segment assets 2,169,158 6,878 874170 1,477,094 134195 4,661,495
Pz REREE Interchangeably used assets
hetween segments
— 9% BERRE — property, plant and
equipment 728,955
— R tiile — prepaid lease payments 47575
— & — inventories 102,036
RANE Investment properties 40,654
RO RBER Bank deposits and hank balances 3,953,242
AR REE Other unallocated assets 178838
RRIPIAERE AR R EE Assets of jointly controlled
entities under proportionate
consolidation 426,281
GAEEE Consolidated total assets 10,139,076
8E Liabilities
AHafk Segment ligbilities 316,516 2,893 134,734 80,523 45,286 579,952
PP ERES - ENZRRAMERNZE Unallocated trade, bils and
other payables 1,936,980
EATAE AR Other unallocated liabilties 31,69
ERIAIAMERE AR ERZBE Liabilities of jointly controlled
entities under proportionate
consolidation 44,959
fAEERE Consolidated total liabilties 2,593,581
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2010

Assets
Segment assets

Interchangeably used assets
between segments
— property, plant and
equipment
— prepaid lease payments
— inventories
Investment properties
Bank deposits and bank balances
Other unallocated assets
Assets of jointly controlled
entities under proportionate
consolidation

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment ligbilities

Unallocated trade, bills and
other payables

Other unallocated liabilties

Liabilities of jointly controlled
entities under proportionate
consolidation

Consolidated total liabilities

&a

accessories Consolidated

fE

GUERE  $YRARE E+E HIREHE  BHRHH

Multi- Medium and ~ Automobile

Light-duty ~ purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and
trucks vehicles trucks trucks

NEEFT  NREFT  NREFT  AREFT  AREFR

RMB'00  AMB00  AMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB000

1,595,579 11,788 499240 1,188,591 197,436

701,523 8,879 323,984 189,733 40,960

AEFTT
RMB000

3,492,634

726,038
48,958
200,501
46,828
5,195,590
257,782

418,935

10,387,266

1,265,079

1,696,032
31,756

56,620

2,949,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o All assets are allocated to operating segments other than
interchangeably used assets between segments, investment
properties, bank deposits and bank balances and other
unallocated assets held by the head office; and

° All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than unallocated trade, bills and other payables and other
unallocated liabilities of the head office.

The assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities under
proportionate consolidation are not allocated to operating segment
assets and liabilities. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(iii) Other segment information

2011

OTHER INFORMATION

Amount included in the
measure of segment profit
orloss or segment assets:

Additions of property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible
assets

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of investment
properties

Release of prepaid lease

payments

aiERE
Light-duty
trucks

NEBTT
RMB000

29597

4,236

81,049

SNERE
Multi-
purposes
vehicles
NE¥TT
RMB000

R+E
Pick-up
trucks

NERTT
RMB000

10,915

41,282

tERENE
Medium and
Heavy-duty
trucks
NEETFT
RMB000

hE
BHREE
Automobile
parts and
accessories
NEETFT
RMB000

AR

Unallocated
NEEFT
RMB'000

Consolidated
NREFT
RMB000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(iii) Other segment information (Cont’d)

2010
AE
BUEAE  SYRAE RfE $ERERE BARBAE  TUSE 58
Multi- Medium and ~ Automobile
Light-duty ~ purposes Pick-up  Heavy-duty parts and
trucks vehicles trucks trucks ~ accessories  Unallocated Consolidated

NEETL  NEETT NEETT  ARETT  AREFL  AREFT  ARETR
RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  AMB000  AMB000  AMB000  AMB'000

OTHER INFORMATION

Amount included in the
measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

Allowance for obsolete

inventories — — — 15,521 - - 15,527
Additions of property,

plant and equipment - — 18,720 - - 17,838 36,558
Additions of intangible

assets 3,302 — — — — — 3302
Amortisation of intangible

assets 4,809 63 — 5,740 - - 10,612
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 73391 — 92,816 93,142 - 39,957 299,306
Impairment for property,

plant and equipment - — - - - 5,161 5,161
Depreciation of investment

properties - — - - - 6,174 6,174
Release of prepaid lease

payments — — — — — 1,383 1,383

(iv) Geographical information

Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) of the Group
amounting to RMB1,729,097,000 (2010: RMB1,864,552,000)
are located in the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
substantially all of the sales of the Group are also made to
customers located in the PRC. The Group has made limited
export sales to countries outside the PRC which accounted for
approximately 1.38% (2010: 0.70%) of the Group’s revenue.

All of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to
property, plant and equipment are located in the PRC for both years
presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(v) Information about major customers

No revenues from a single external customer other than Qingling
Group contributed to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue. For

the year ended 31 December 2011, revenue from Qingling Group
amounted to RMB1,185,397,000 (2010: RMB605,351,000).

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Bz-2—-F BE-%- ¢
+ZA=t-B t=A=+-
LEE tﬁE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
ARETFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Current tax 58,790 52,914
Deferred tax charge (credit) (Note 25) 1,992 (826)
60,782 52,088

According to the Implementation of Transitional Preferential Policies
for Enterprise Income Tax by Guo Fa [2007] No. 39, the Group
was entitled to the Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15% which is
applicable for companies located in the western region of China up
to 2010. The Company, Chongaing Qingling Moulds Co., Ltd. (B
EH#EEBR AT, “Qingling Moulds”), a subsidiary of the Group,
and Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd. (B#H+4%# (&
) ZEAR AT, “Qingling Isuzu Engine”), a jointly controlled
entity all enjoyed 15% income tax rate up to 2010 because they are
located in the western region of China.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

According to the notice of Certain Tax Policies for Implementation
of Exploration and Development of Western Zone (Cai Shui [2011]
No. 58), a company located in the western region of the PRC and
engaged in the business encouraged by the PRC government
continues to be entitled to the Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15%.
Government authorities will issue the Encouraged Industries Catalog
in the Western Region (the “Industries Catalog”) separately. The
Group has fulfilled the requirement under the Industries Catalog
in prior years, and will be subject to the re-certification by the
competent taxation authority to fulfill the new Industries Catalog.
In the opinion of the directors, the Company, Qingling Moulds and
Qingling Isuzu Engine are able to satisfy the requirement of the new
Industries Catalog and continue to declare the Enterprise Income
Tax at the tax rate of 15%.

Chongging Qingling Technical Center (EEEFTH L, “Qingling
Technical Center”), a subsidiary of the Group, and Qingling Isuzu
(Chongging) Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (E$cH 4%
(EE) AEHESIREAR AR, “Qingling Isuzu Sales”), a jointly
controlled entity are both subject to 25% (2010: 25%) income tax
rate in year 2011.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

BE-2—-% BE-E-ZF
+=A=+t-B +=A=1+-H
LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Profit before tax 416,932 355,411
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 15%
(2010: 15%) 62,540 53,312
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose 181 694
Additional tax benefit and refund
applicable to the Group (note) (2,048) (1,969)
Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary 109 51
Tax charge for the year 60,782 52,088

Note:
The additional tax benefit and refund applicable to the Group are as follows:
Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulation, expenses in research nature are

deductible at 50% of the cost incurred additionally. The related tax benefit amounted to
RMB2,048,000 (2010: RMB1,969,000) for the year ended 31 December 2011.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:

Salaries and other payments and benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Total staff costs (including directors’ and
supervisors' remuneration (see note 9))

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Allowance for obsolete inventories
(included in cost of sales)
Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales)
Auditor's remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Impairment for property, plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
(included in cost of sales)
Minimum lease payments under operating leases
in respect of rented premises and
production facilities
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense

and after crediting:

Sales of scrap materials
Interest income from bank deposits and balances
Income from renting of investment properties
Less: direct operating expenses from
investment properties that generated
rental income during the year
Income from renting of moulds and tooling
equipment
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Government grant
Net foreign exchange gain

BE-_Z——§ BE-ZT-Zf%
+=ZA=t—-B +ZRA=+-AH
EFE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
146,932 126,531
18,606 16,393
165,538 142,924

17 —

— 15,627

9,105 10,612

3,107 3,051
287,498 299,306
6,174 6,174

— 5,161

1,383 1,383
28,856 22,969
7,140,510 5,246,792
2,913 2,044
112,196 100,639
6,180 6,120
(1,086) (1,048)
27,324 33,240

— 622

9.424 4,890

190 4,448
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' EMOLUMENTS

Hke Hike
Bk W) BHEA #eR L BifER
RERA Pefomance  HEER BHEA  Perfomance  HEER
Salaries related  Retirement ~ =%--% Salaries related  Retirement ~ =%-%F
and  incentive benefit M and  incentive benefit 2010
he other  payments scheme i he other  payments scheme i
Fee benefits el contributions Total Fee benefits el contributions
AEETT AEETT \EEFT  N\EEFR AREFT ARETR T

RMBO0  RMBOOO  AMBU0  RMBOOO  AMBOO  RMBO00  AMBOND

Executive directors
Wa Yun - 3% - 10 40 - 34 - 8 30
Gao Jianmin = 37 = 10 u = b = 8 n
Liu Guangming - 37 - 10 a7 - 293 - 8 301
Pan Yong - 387 - 10 ur - 23 - 8 30
Yue Huagjang - 3 - 10 k1) - b - 8 ki
Makoto Tanaka = = = = = = = = = =
Ryozo Tsukioka - - - - - - - - - -
Masanori Kztayama - - - - - - - - - -
= 174 = 50 1791 = 1514 = 4 1554
Independent non-
executive directors
Long Tao 120 - - - 120 120 - - - 120
Song Xiaojing 120 - - - 120 120 - - - 120
XuBingjn 120 - - - 120 120 - - - 120
Liu Tianni % - - - % = = = = =
458 - - - 458 30 - - - 30
Supervisors' remuneration
Min Qing - % 8 10 1 - i} 8 8 i
Zhang Wanjin - 17 4 B 62 - 16 50 5 il
Thou Hong - i 06 1 101 - 0 (3] 1 90
- 80 188 n %0 - 64 19 0 8
458 181 188 n 2539 30 1578 19 60 21%

Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the
individual performance of the supervisors and approved by the Remuneration
Committee (composed of one executive director and four independent non-

executive directors).

No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31
December 2011 (2010: nil).

All the five highest paid individuals of the Group for both years were
directors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

10. TRANSFER TO STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

The statutory surplus reserve fund represents the appropriation
of 10% of profit after taxation for the year of the Company,
calculated in accordance with relevant Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises in the PRC (“PRC GAAP") and the Articles of
Association of the Company. The appropriation may cease to apply
if the balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund has reached
50% of the registered capital of the Company. According to the
Articles of Association of the Company, statutory surplus reserve
fund can be used to make up prior year losses, to expand production
operations or to increase capital. The Company may capitalise the
statutory surplus reserve fund by way of bonus issues provided
that the remaining amount of statutory surplus reserve fund after
such distribution shall not be less than 25% of the registered capital
of the Company. The amount shall be submitted to shareholders'
general meeting for approval.

11. TRANSFER TO DISCRETIONARY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

No amount was appropriated to the discretionary reserve fund
in 2011 (2010: nil). The balance amounting to RMB2,347,000 of
the discretionary reserve fund was the amount appropriated by a
subsidiary of the Company — Qingling Moulds in previous years at
a percentage of the profit after taxation of the respective years in
accordance with PRC GAAP and Articles of Association of Qingling
Moulds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

12. DIVIDEND
HE-%-—-f BE-E-ZF
+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H
LLFE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AEETT AEETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Dividends recognised as distributions
during the year:
2010 Final, paid — RMB0.10
(2010: 2009 Final, paid — RMB0.08) per share
248,227 198,581
A final dividend amounting to RMB297,872,000 or RMBO0.12 per

share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: final
dividend amounting to RMB248,227,000 or RMB0.10 per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2010) has been proposed
by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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HZ2011F12A318 IEFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
13. EREF 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
VNN P %ﬁ/\}fﬁt HR The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
BRRE T EREGE - owners of the Company is based on the following data:
ZA Earnings
BE-Z--F BE-Z-BF
+=A=t-B +=ZA=1+-AH
LEE LFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
BUEGrEERERRF 2 B Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
(RRElEaREAEGEEERT) per share (Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company) 353,658 301,666
& B Number of shares
B2-%-—-F BE-E-ZF
+=A=t-B +=ZA=1+-H
LEE LFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
BN ESRERRR 2BRHEE Number of shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share 2,482,268 2,482,268
RMEFEE I EEABETEINZ There were no potential ordinary shares outstanding in both years
AReEA#SEYE 2 LB - presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

R B
BERME KERRE
Moulds,  Furniture, RE  EEIR
#F  plantand fixtures and Motor Construction @5t
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
ANEETT  AREFr  ARETT AREFT  AEETT  AREFT
RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
COST
At 1 January 2010 510,756 3,728,037 68,761 24,167 2,681 4,354,402
Additions 105 3,580 — 34 32,839 36,558
Transfer from construction
in progress 12,362 2,347 = 119 (14,828) =
Disposals (4171) (1,627) = (359) = (6,157)
At 31 December 2010 519,062 3,732,337 68,761 23,961 40692 4,384,803
Additions — 2,924 — 2,963 162,838 168,725
Transfer from construction
in progress 44,528 8,860 = = (63,388) =
Disposals (17,476) (24) = (178) = (17,678)
At 31 December 2011 564,104 3,744,097 68,761 26,746 150,142 4,535,850
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2010 274,772 2,004,967 57,49 19,985 — 2,357,219
Depreciation provided for the year 23,547 273,458 1,535 766 — 299,306
Impairment loss recognised
in profit or loss 5,161 — — — — 5,161
Eliminated on disposals (1,690) (1,239) = (323) = (3,252)
At 31 December 2010 301,790 2,277,186 59,030 20,428 — 2658434
Depreciation provided for the year 23,801 261,116 1,931 650 — 287,493
Impairment loss eliminated
on disposal (4,306) — — — — (4,306)
Eliminated on disposals (13,169) (22) — (161) — (13,352)
At 31 December 2011 308,116 2,538,280 60,961 20917 — 2928274
CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2010 217,262 1,455,151 9,731 3,533 40692 1,726,369
At 31 December 2011 237,988 1,205,817 7,800 5,829 150,142 1,607,576
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

An impairment of RMB5,161,000 were provided on certain buildings
in year 2010. The cost of such buildings as of 31 December
2010 were RMB20,245,000, with the accumulated depreciation
of RMB15,084,000. During the year ended 31 December 2011,
some buildings previously impaired has been demolished, and the
related impairment loss of RMB4,306,000 has been eliminated
correspondingly.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress and specialised production facilities and
moulds, are depreciated on a straight-line basis based on the
following estimated useful life:
Buildings 20 years
Moulds, plant and machinery, except for 5 to 10 years

specialised production facilities and moulds
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Specialised production facilities and moulds included in moulds,
plant and machinery which can be identified in relation to specific
production processes are depreciated by reference to the expected
production volume of these facilities and moulds. Other moulds,
plant and machinery which are for general production purposes are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over 5 to 10 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

Due to a change in the market demand for the products and
performing an assessment by reference to the expected capacity
and physical output, with effect from 1 January 2011, the expected
production volume of specialised production facilities and moulds
have been changed. This change in expected production volume
has resulted in a decrease in the depreciation charge for the year by
approximately RMB27,599,000.

As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of moulds and
machinery that has been leased out was RMB595,314,000 (2010:
RMB642,535,000).

As at 31 December 2011, moulds, plant and machinery with original
cost of RMB1,844,170,000 (2010: RMB1,145,597,000) have been
fully depreciated but still in use.



e B KM E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE201MF12A31ALFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

15. AN L#HEE 15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

—2-F —E-%F
t=A=t-8 t=A=t-H
31/12/2011  31/12/2010
ARETFT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

AEERMBEA LS B The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:
FAFR B Ry HR 1 d 57 R A Medium-term land use right in the PRC 47,575 48,958
HFEMEINA Analysis for reporting purpose as:
ERBEE Non-current asset 46,192 47,575
MBEE Current asset 1,383 1,383
47,575 48,958
16. REYXE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
“E—-% “Z-%%
2011 2010
ANREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRA COST
R—A—AR+=ZA=+—H At 1 January and 31 December 125,962 125,962
HERAEE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
n—A—H At 1 January 79,134 72,960
FETERE Depreciation provided for the year 6,174 6,174
R+=ZA=1+—H At 31 December 85,308 79,134
REE CARRYING VALUES
R+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 40,654 46,828
RZZE—ZTF+=-F  ARaHE The Company renewed the lease contracts on certain properties
BRATREBET THT with Qingling Isuzu Engine in December 2010, for a term of 3
MEZHESHN REP=F - & years. Gross rental income from investment properties amounted to
BMEIZHEWAREBAARE RMB1,030,000 (2010: RMB1,020,000) per month.

1,030,000 (= —Z4F : AR
#51,020,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

The above investment properties are situated in the PRC with
medium lease term and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
20 years.

The Group management is unable to arrive at the fair value of the
investment properties as the comparable market transactions are
infrequent and alternative reliable estimates are not available.

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BinERE
Technology transfer fees
—g—-% -%-%%
2011 2010
ARETFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

COST

At 1 January 293,987 290,685
Additions — 3,302
At 31 December 293,987 293,987
AMORTISATION

At 1 January 250,207 239,595
Provided for the year 9,105 10,612
At 31 December 259,312 250,207
CARRYING AMOUNT

At 31 December 34,675 43,780
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

Payments of technology transfer fees and lump sum royalties
under technology transfer agreements with Isuzu Motors Limited
(“Isuzu”), the substantial shareholder of the Company, are
capitalised as intangible assets and are amortised over license
period ranging from ten years to thirteen years, commencing from
the use of the technologies in production. Continuing royalties
payable to Isuzu under the technology transfer agreements are
charged to the expenses as and when incurred.

As at 31 December 2011, intangible assets with original cost
of RMB178,589,000 (2010: RMB178,589,000) have been fully
amortised but still in use.

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Qingling Isuzu Engine was established in May 2007, and is mainly
engaged in manufacture of engines and relevant parts. The
registered capital is US$84,260,000, and the Company contributed
US$42,130,000, approximately RMB300,060,000 to Qingling Isuzu
Engine. The Company and Isuzu each held 50% of issued capital
respectively.

Qingling Isuzu Sales was established in September 2008 for
the purpose of selling of Isuzu automobiles and parts. The
registered capital is US$4,600,000, and the Company contributed
US$2,300,000, approximately RMB15,714,000 to Qingling Isuzu
Sales. The Company and Isuzu each held 50% of issued capital
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

18. RiAFEZEHERER (&) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)

R—_ZE——F+_A=+—8 " As at 31 December 2011, the Group had interests in the following

AEER NI AREHERES

jointly controlled entities:

X£E
FEZBRT
RAEELH
Proportion
£% of nominal BE2
RERR value of ZRERH
Form of SMRLE FEEEMIL issued capital  Proportion of
ERsE business Place of Principal place held by  voting power FEEH
Name of entity structure establishment of operation the Group held Principal activities
BRI EE BAipAvA el HE 50% 50%  EEIHRIEE
Qingling Isuzu Engine  Incorporated ~ PRC PRC HP AR
Manufacture
of engines and
relevant parts
BROTHE Balieva HhE HE 50% 50% HERTK
Qingling Isuzu Sales  Incorporated ~ PRC PRC B R E

94

Selling of Isuzu
automobiles and
parts



e B IR MR

HZE2011E12A318 LEE

18. RAEEEGIHE B &S ()

AEERARZEN EREREAN
SEEDEZMBEERRA LB

AR - WERIB 2 W) Bt
T

MENEE

EnBEE

mEaE

RBER AR Y

RIBER AKX

FEREH

19. 78

Exm

Hkm

95

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

interests in jointly controlled entities attributable to the Group's

interest therein which is accounted for using

proportionate

consolidation with the line-by-line reporting format is set out below:

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Revenue recognised in profit or loss

Expenses recognised in profit or loss

Profit for the year

19. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

—2--§  C-B-%F%
2011 2010
ARETFT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
299,700 270,513
126,581 148,422
44,959 56,620
866,698 751,281
847,692 730,740
19,006 20,541
—E-——-f “E-ZF
t=BA=t+-8 t=A=+-H
31/12/2011  31/12/2010
AREFT — AEEFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
665,704 805,288
83,917 130,267
155,260 335,861
904,881 1,271,416
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the balance of trade and

other receivables includes amounts due from Qingling Group,

subsidiaries of Qingling Group and Qingling Isuzu Sales as

follows:

—E——-f —E-Zf

tT=A=+-R t=A=t+-*H

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

AREFT ARETr

RMB’000 RMB’000

Qingling Group 610,394 224,795
Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 41,019 125,037
Qingling Isuzu Sales 37 —
651,450 349,832

Receivables from Qingling Group of RMB610,394,000

(2010:

RMB224,795,000) were in trade nature, of which RMB610,394,000
(2010: RMB208,361,000) are aged within 6 months and nil (2010:

RMB16,434,000) are aged over 6 months to 1 year.

Receivables from subsidiaries of Qingling Group were in trade
nature, of which RMB26,533,000 are aged within 6 months (2010:
RMB125,037,000) and RMB14,486,000 (2010: nil) are aged over 6

months to 1 year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of
trade receivables presented based on invoice date, net of
allowances, of the Group is as follows:

—§--% -§-%%

TZA=t-HB t=ZA=t-H

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

ARETFT ARETr

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 3 months 703,286 192,476

Between 3 to 6 months 1,388 152,201

Between 7 to 12 months 5,273 329

Between 1 to 2 years 15,338 16,586

Over 2 years 561 19
Trade receivables less allowance for

doubtful debts 725,846 361,611

Other receivables 18,500 35,318

Prepaid value-added tax 50,745 109,978

Prepayments 115,241 140,074

910,332 646,981

As at 31 December 2011, trade and other receivables of
RMB36,451,000 (2010: RMB6,800,000) and RMB21,000 (2010: nil)
were denominated in Japanese Yen (“JPY") and United State Dollar
(“USD") respectively, other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an external
credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. 99% (2010:
99%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have the best credit scoring attributable under the external credit
scoring system used by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of
trade receivables presented based on invoice date, net of
allowances, of the Group is as follows: (Cont'd)

The credit period granted on sales of goods is 3 to 6 months.

Included in the Group’'s trade receivable balance are debtors
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB21,172,000 (2010:
approximately RMB16,934,000) which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss, of which RMB18,656,000 (2010: approximately
RMB16,434,000) is due from subsidiaries of Qingling Group. The
Group does not consider any risk on subsequent collections, and all
of these receivables are expected to be settled in the coming year.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in prepayments is an amount of approximately
RMB105,209,000 (2010: RMB131,022,000) related to the payment
in advance to independent suppliers of steel as of 31 December
2011.

(c) At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of trade
receivables of the Group which are past due but not impaired,
net of allowances, is as follows:

“g--5 -2-%F

t=A=1t-A t=A=t+-H

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

AREFTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Between 7 to 12 months 5,273 329
Between 1 to 2 years 15,338 16,586
Over 2 years 561 19
21,172 16,934
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

—2—-F —B-BF

+=A=t-H t=A=1+-H

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

AEEFT AEEFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Balance at beginning and end of the year 4,595 4,595

Allowance for doubtful debts are provided for individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB4,595,000
(2010: RMB4,595,000).

21. BILLS RECEIVABLES

At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of bills
receivables of the Group is as follows:

—2--f -B-Bf

+=A=+-B t=A=t-H

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

AEETT  ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 1 month 728,789 309,036
Between 1 to 2 months 507,909 274,125
Between 2 to 3 months 318,981 188,887
Between 4 to 6 months 859,759 435,133
2,415,438 1,207,181

All the above bills receivables are guaranteed by banks and their
expiry dates ranged from 30 to 180 days.



e B IR MR

HZE2011E12A31B LEE

22, FEIHAEHEB=EA 2R
TER

ZREERIBAAANAEAE
+T_@EAZHEITEREESFTR
HEMEKANF225%%3.50% (=
T—FTF :226%%2.75%) °

R-_E——F+-_HA=+—8 "
A R #8128000 (= T — &
&£ : AR ¥13,084,0007T) 2 E HY
BEHRAETLINE MIENSTEE
EEONEEEIIE -

23. BR&

it - BRI

FREEARKTORED
— WER
— Hik

100

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

22. BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY MORE
THAN THREE MIONTHS

The amounts represented bank fixed deposits with original maturity
of 6 to 12 months and carried fixed interest rate. Their respective
interest rates are ranging from 2.25% to 3.50% (2010: 2.25% to
2.75%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2011, fixed deposits amounting to
RMB8,128,000 (2010: RMB13,084,000) were denominated in USD,
other than the functional currency of the respective group entities.

23. SHARE CAPITAL

o
—g-%8
2011 and 2010
AREFT
RMB'000

Registered, issued and fully paid 2,482,268

RGAHA
Number of shares
“E——%R
—g-%%

2011 and 2010
7

‘000

Shares of RMB1 each
— Domestic shares 1,243,616

— H shares 1,238,652

2,482,268
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

23. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

Domestic shares are ordinary shares subscribed for and credited
as fully paid up in Renminbi by the PRC government and/or entities
established in the PRC. H shares are ordinary shares subscribed for
in Hong Kong Dollar and credited as fully paid up in Renminbi by
persons other than the PRC government and/or entities established
in the PRC.

Domestic shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with
each other.

Domestic shares are not freely traded in The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

There were no changes in the registered, issued and fully paid share
capital of the Company during both years.



e B KM E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE2011F12A31RILEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

24, BB -EBENRBERH 24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES
fib & 13 K H

(a) MRIEHER  EBRAERE (a) At the end of the reporting period, the balances of trade
BEEENA TR  EBRE payables included the amounts due to Isuzu, subsidiaries of
BzHBARIRERA T Qingling Group and Qingling Isuzu Engine as follows:
BEEARIER T

—2--5 c3-%%
+2A=+-B +ZA=f-A
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
NREFT — AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000

fte Isuzu 119,219 88,052
EREENEAR Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 41,057 8,618
Bl A THREEK Qingling Isuzu Engine 39,668 31,570

199,944 128,240
FHREAESHE  EIEKWF - These amounts are in trade nature, unsecured, interest free and the
BB RKEMERNEERTHAS credit period granted on purchases of materials is 3 to 6 months.
Z6f@A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of trade
and bills payables of the Group is as follows:

—§--% -§-%%

t=A=t-8 t=A=t-A

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

AEETT  ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Within 3 months 1,678,106 1,332,522
Between 3 to 6 months 252,248 228,535
Between 7 to 12 months 46,418 Bio8]l
QOver 12 months 47,946 50,522
Trade and bills payables 2,024,718 1,615,110
Accrued selling expenses 295,166 270,652
Value added-tax payables 510 19,662
Other payables 39,514 40,033
Advance from customers 200,049 970,507
2,559,957 2,915,964

The balance of advance from customers at the end of the reporting
period represents the advance received for the subsequent sales of
trucks and vehicles and automobile parts and accessories.

At the end of the reporting period, trade and other payables
amounted to RMB129,012,000 (2010: RMB88,052,000) are
denominated in JPY, other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

25. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and

EHIBEEERALES : movements thereon during the current year:

REBRE

FEEE Impairment of
Allowance for  property, plant @t
inventories and equipment Total
AREFr AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE—ZTF—H—H At 1 January 2010 3,496 — 3,496
FPAEE Charged to profit or loss 52 774 826
RZZE—TF+=A=+—H At31 December 2010 3,548 774 4,322
st ABE Credited to profit or loss (1,346) (646) (1,992)
RZZE——F+=A=+—H At31 December 2011 2,202 128 2,330

26. BITERRES

IRITHE R A ™ 5 F F X £0.50%

—E T4 :036%) c LAEBEE
EEEMNIEEBUINEEIE
MIRITEBRRIBESEHIMAT -

e
R
BT
BT
RgE
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26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The market interest rate of bank balances is 0.50% (2010: 0.36%)
per annum. The bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group

entities are set out below:

—B—-—-F5 ZE-ZF

T=A T=A

Er=[E Er—

31/12/2011  31/12/2010

ARETFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

usb 8,786 8,127
JPY 11,648 11,291
European Dollar (“EUR") 4,859 3,862
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") 41 62
Great British Pound (“GBP") 3 —
25,337 23,342
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained
profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure from
time to time. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.



e B KM E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2011F12A31B IEEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
28. £@IT H 28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) €WMITEEHR (a) Categories of financial instruments
BZ-E2—-% HE-Z-ZF
+=A=+-B +=A=+-H
IEEE EEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
ANE¥TFr AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TRIEE Financial assets
EF RN Loan and receivables
JEURER TR Trade receivables 725,846 361,611
H b YA Other receivables 18,500 35,318
[EWZE Bills receivables 2,415,438 1,207,181
REIBABB=MA 2 HTER Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months 3,326,687 3,707,722
BIEBRRRE Bank balances and cash 848,928 1,683,709
7,335,399 6,995,541
eRBE Financial liabilities
- ficli Amortised cost
IR R ER R Trade and bills payables 2,024,718 1,615,110
FRIRHEER Accrued selling expenses 295,166 270,652
HA R IR Other payables 39,514 40,033

2,359,398 1,925,795
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bills receivables, bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and bills payables, accrued selling expenses and
other payables. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and currency risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. There has been no significant changes
to the Group's exposure to these risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures these risks. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk

Several entities of the Group have foreign currency purchases,
sales, which expose the Group to currency risk. The Group
considers the currency risk insignificant and does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to currency risk.
The Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d)

Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Currency risk (Cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities that are subject to currency
risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

af EBE

Liabilities Assets
“B--f CZE-Bf CZB--%f CZB-%f
T=A T=A TR TR
Eir=FE =t-H =t-H =t-R
31/12/2011  31/12/2010  31/12/2011  31/12/2010
ABEFT  ARETT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

UsD = = 16,935 21,211
JPY 129,012 88,0562 48,099 18,091
EUR = = 4,859 3,862
HKD — — 41 62
GBP = = 3 =

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations in USD, JPY
and EUR, The management assessed the risk of fluctuations in HKD
and GBP is insignificant and did not present the sensitivity analysis
in the RMB against HKD and GBP.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d)

Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Currency risk (Cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
in the RMB against USD, JPY and EUR. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
period end for a 5% change in RMB against USD, JPY and EUR.
A (negative) and positive number below indicates a (decrease)
and increase in profit for the year, respectively, where the RMB
strengthen 5% against USD, JPY and EUR. For a 5% weakening of
the RMB against USD, JPY and EUR, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year.

—2—-F —B-BF
2011 2010
ARETFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

Profit or loss
usb (720) (910)
JPY 3,439 2,973
EUR (207) (388)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d)

Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of deposit interest rate arising from the Group's bank
balances.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to bank balances carried prevailing deposit interest rate
at the end of the reporting period. 0.27% (2010: 0.27%) increase
or decrease in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 0.27% higher/lower and all the other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2011 would increase/decrease
by approximately RMB1,948,000 (2010: increase/decrease by
RMB3,864,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its bank balances.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits
and monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debtors. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debtor at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on amounts due from related parties is limited
because the Group also periodically evaluated the related parties'
credit rating and these related parties credit rating is high.

There is concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
parties, which have been disclosed in note 20 and the Group
periodically evaluated the related parties credit rating and also look
for more non-related party customers. Apart from that, the Group
does not have significant concentration of credit risk on trade and
other receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counter-
parties and customers. The credit risk on liquid fund which are
deposited with several banks is limited because the Group's bank
deposits and bank balances are deposited with authorised banks in
the PRC with high credit-ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on
cash generated from operating activities as a significant source of
liquidity. Trade receivables and bills receivables can be received
within six months based on the earliest date on which the Group
can require payments and bank balances can be drawn on demand.
The directors believe that the Group will have sufficient funds
available to meet its financial obligations in the foreseeable future
based on management working capital forecast.

The following tables detail the Group’'s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The Group's
financial liabilities are all non-interest bearing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

bS]
ReNEfE FAZEEE
HMER 3EAZIE Total Carrying
Less than 12388 3 months  undiscounted amount

1month  1-3 months to1year  cashflows atyearend
ANEETT  AREFT  AGKFT  ARETT  AREFr
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

At 31 December 2011
Trade and bills payables 704,487 952,347 367,884 2,024,718 2,024,718
Accrued selling expense
and other payables 133,601 109,132 91,947 334,680 334,680
838,088 1,061,479 459,831 2,359,398 2,359,398
At 31 December 2010
Trade and bills payables 960,335 381,476 273,299 1,615,110 1,615,110
Accrued selling expense
and other payables 119,368 81,177 110,140 310,685 310,685

1,079,703 462,653 383,439 1,925,795 1,926,795

(¢) Fair values

The fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

The Group's related party balances are set out in notes 20(a)
(a).

and 24

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions

with related parties:

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries

X5

@) BEREBELEREH
ETHBARGRAT

(b) ~ (c) ~ (d) ~ (e) ~ (f)
K@) Fr 25 Z K B &
alsh)

XEEH

(@)  Qingling Group and certain subsidiaries of Qingling Group
(Exclude the following subsidiaries set out at in (b), (c),
(d), (e), (f) and (g) below)

Types of transactions

HERE

& TR R R A
NEEESETHA4 (BT

HENE  BERR

BEAETHMA(HE2)

RER B
RERE
fRi% B it

BE-%--F BE-T-%F

tT=A=+-R t=A=t+-*H

LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

AREFT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB’000

Sales of chassis 1,185,397 605,351
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts (Note 1) 90,306 87,342

Sales of property, plant and equipment — 940

Purchases of automobile parts (Note 2) 220,106 25,661

Expenses for renting warehouse 6,040 6,036

Expenses for renting equipment 1,380 1,380

Service fee expense 31 300

HtaiE1 - sEAZZE——F 2 AR¥6,837,000
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T(ZZT—Z & : AR¥S6,331,000
7o)~ AR #69,909,0007T (=& —
T4 . AR64,831,0007T) & A
R #13,481,000 (=& —Z & :
AR #15,962,0007T) 2 Bl BARER
HMEEBERTEENDRAREGR
ARI([ELR#EM])  EEERARE
FHREEFRARA(ESR EE]D
LREEERAEREBRERD
Al ([EREAR ) HE J 1 R RM R
ZEEoBKRWEM BRERRE
REBHEEREBEZ2EHMER
& e

Note 1: Included in the 2011 amount are RMB6,837,000 (2010: RMB6,331,000),

RMB69,909,000 (2010: RMB64,831,000) and RMB13,481,000 (2010:
RMB15,962,000) representing the sales of parts and raw materials to EEE
SRITERINTMESEFR AR (“Qingling Jijia”), EEERSE FEEEFRA
A)(“Qingling Shangzhuang”) and EEEH#AEREZLMERZAR (“Qingling
Chassis"”) respectively during the current year. Qingling Jijia, Qingling
Shangzhuang and Qingling Chassis are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Qingling
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Cont’d)

(@) (Cont'd)

Note 2: Included in the 2011 amount are RMB49,102,000 (2010: RMB4,581,000),
RMB70,450,000 (2010: RMB15,456,000) and RMB99,151,000 (2010:
RMB4,564,000) representing the purchases of automobile parts from Qingling
Jijia, Qingling Shangzhuang and Qingling Chassis respectively during the

current year.

Other than the amounts included in Note 1 and 2, the remaining
transaction amounts arise from the transactions with Qingling
Group.

(b) EEERFEEEMRAF, asubsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions
BE-T—- —g-%%
+=A=t-8 t=A=t-8
LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000

= F BZE
A A +=

Purchases of automobile parts 21,744 21,107
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts 22,381 20,382
Expenses for renting equipment 2,623 1,893
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Cont’d)

(c) EEEZRBEER AR, asubsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions

BE-2--F BE-S-ZF

+=RA=t-B +=A=t-H

LLFE ILFE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

AEETFT AEETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Purchases of automobile parts 63,877 42,661
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts 4,412 2,345

Expenses for renting equipment 13,769 10,462

(d) EEEREBERAA, asubsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions

HEZ-%—-F BECR-BF
+=RA=t-H t=A=1+-H

LLFE LLFE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

ARETFT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Purchases of automobile parts 452,427 378,938
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts 301,243 70,996

Purchases of equipment 2,910 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Cont’d)

(e) EEELHZBEEBAR AT, asubsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions

BE-2--F BE-R-%F
tT=A=1t-R t=A=t+-*H

LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010

AREFT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Purchases of automobile parts 71,267 64,202
Sales of parts and raw materials for the
manufacture of automobile parts 14,827 13,433

(f) EERERBAERATE], asubsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions

BE-%--F BE-F-BF

+=HA=+-B +t=B=t-H

LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

ARETT ANEEFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Purchases of automobile parts 93,148 73,755
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts 5,512 8,636
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries

(Cont'd)

() EEE%BIRER AR, asubsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions

Purchases of automobile parts
Sales of parts and raw materials for the
manufacture of automobile parts

(ii) Transactions with Isuzu

Types of transactions

Purchases of parts and components

Royalties on sales of trucks and other vehicles

Sales of accessory sets and other automobile
parts and components

BE-2-—-% BZE-%-%%
+=-R=+t-B +t=RA=+-H
LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AREFT ANREFTT
RMB'000 RMB’000
26,466 16,417

4,421 1,432
ﬁg:g__ﬁ QE— % ¢
+=ZA=+-B +=A=+-H
IEEE LFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
ANREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
1,462,985 1,597,549
86,814 67,911

68,034 49,815
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(iii) Transactions with Qingling

controlled entity of the Company

Types of transactions

Sales of accessory sets and raw materials
Purchases of automobile parts

Rental income for investment properties

Rental income for moulds and tooling equipment
Consolidated services income

Above transactions

represented the

Isuzu Engine, a jointly
Hz2-%-—-F BE-Z-ZF
+=A=+-B +t=A=t-H
LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,044,009 1,012,358
1,655,454 1,485,174
12,360 12,240
54,648 66,480

3,039 1,918

total amounts before

elimination of the Group's interests of 50% in the jointly controlled
entity based on proportionate consolidation.

(iv) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales, a jointly
controlled entity of the Company
Types of transactions
B2-%-—-F BE-E-ZF
+=ZA=+-B t=RA=t-8H
LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AEETFT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Sales of trucks and automobile parts 92 —
Above transactions represented the total amounts before

elimination of the Group's interests of 50% in the jointly controlled
entity based on proportionate consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(v) Transactions/balances with other government-related
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government
(“government-related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is
part of a larger group of companies under Qingling Group which is
controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries disclosed in section (i) above,
the Group also conducts businesses with other government-related
entities. The directors of the Company consider those government-
related entities are independent third parties so far as the Group's
business transactions with them are concerned.

Material transactions/balances with other government-related
entities are as follows:

BE-%-—-F BE-F-%F
+=A=t-B +=A=t-8

LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

AREFTT AEEFTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Trade sales 2,373,845 1,766,140
Trade purchases 2,417,918 889,772
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(v) Transactions/balances with other government-related

entities in the PRC (Cont’d)

—E——-f “E-ZF
T=A=1t-H t=A=t+-H
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
Trade and other balances due to other
government-related entities 288,850 439,664
Trade and other balances due from other
government-related entities 501,531 408,859

In addition, the Group has entered

into various transactions,

including utilities services and surcharges/taxes charged by the

PRC government, and deposits and borrowings and other general

banking facilities with certain banks and financial institutions which

are government-related entities in its ordinary course of business of

the Company. In view of the nature of these banking transactions,

the directors are of the opinion that separate disclosure would not

be meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are of the

opinion that transactions with government-related entities are not

significant to the Group’s operations.



e B KM E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZ2011F12A318 IEFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
29. MEARS & (H) 29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont’d)
(vi) EERTEEEASNHMH (vi) Compensation of directors and key management
personnel
FRNESKRFTEZEEBEREAEMKE The remuneration of directors and other members of key
ZEB T management during the year are as follows:
BE-%-—-F BE-Z-ZF
+=A=+-B +t=A=t-H
LLEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AREFTT AEEFTT
RMB'000 RMB’000
2R Short-term benefits 3,035 2,667
BIRREN Post-employment benefits 121 103
3,156 2,770
30. EIE 30. COMMITMENTS
(a) MIBEHER AKBEZE (a) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
ARAEENT capital commitments:
—2—-F Z%-%F
t=A=t-R t=A=+-H
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
ENFEYE  BEREENETD Contracted for but not provided in
BRNTE B oRBENERRE the consolidated financial statements
in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 95,499 11,263
BRRENE - BERSENEEESIE Approved by the directors but not contracted
1B iR RFT AR B AR in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 133,224 241,419
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

31. OPERATING LEASE

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases which fall due as follows:

g% CB-%%

T=A=1t-R t=A=t+-*H

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

AREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within one year 33,925 23,143
In the second to fifth year inclusive 38,062 71,843
71,987 94,986

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group

for certain of its warehouses and production facilities. Leases

are negotiated for an average term of one to three years. Some

contracts have been renewed during the reporting period.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

—8-—-5 -8-%8f

+=A=+-B t=A=t-H

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

AEEFT ANEEFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Within one year 51,015 33,604
In the second to fifth year inclusive 99,340 150,355
150,355 183,859
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

31. OPERATING LEASE (Cont’d)

The Group as lessor (Cont’d)

The amount represents rentals receivable from Qingling Isuzu
Engine for certain of its land and buildings and production facilities.
Relevant contracts have been renewed in 2010 and leases are
negotiated for an average term of three years. On 2 March 2011,
the renewal of the leases has been approved at an extraordinary
general meeting.

Other than the above, the Group does not have any other
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases of property, plant and equipment and
investment property at the end of the reporting period.

32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group has a service agreement with its ultimate holding
company, Qingling Group, whereby the Group will reimburse the
contributions made by Qingling Group to a defined contribution
pension scheme administered by the municipal government in
respect of the staff of the Group. According to such scheme, the
Group shall annually pay an amount, calculated at a percentage
of the total wages of the staff, to a retirement fund administered
by the municipal government. The amount paid during the year
under such arrangement amounted to RMB18,606,000 (2010:
RMB16,393,000).

At the end of the reporting period, there are no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the retirement
benefits scheme before they are fully vested in the contributions
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable by the
Group in future (2010: nil).



e B KM E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2011F12H31HIEFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
33. FEMBEAF 33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
R-ZE——F+_A=+—"8BK Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 and
—E—FTF+-_HA=+—HAR 31 December 2010 are as follows:
AIMMEARFBERT
RAREEEEN
EMRREER EBLREL ERMEREENE DL
Country of Form of ZMER  Percentage of nominal value of
WEARAE registration business Registered  registered capital directly held by B
Name of subsidiary and operation  structure capital the Company Principal activities
—E2—-F “Z2-2F
2011 2010
BREA HE — Hoh AL 38,166,600% 7T 50.56% 50.56%  AESUETEHHMER
BBAREME  Incorporated US$38,166,600 Production of moulds
Qingling Moulds PRC — Sino for the manufacture of
foreign equity automobile parts

joint venture

BBl HE — B AL 29,980,000% 7T 51% 51%  WARFER
BEARZNME  Incorporated 1US$29,980,000 Not yet commenced
Qingling Technical PRC — Sino business
Center foreign equity

joint venture

FRZEWB A T W EKEDE The subsidiaries have no debt securities outstanding at the end of
TEESH o the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

34. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial

Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in jointly controlled entities
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Amount due from related parties
Amount due from jointly controlled entities
Bills receivables
Prepaid lease payments
Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade, bills and other payables
Amount due to related parties
Amount due to subsidiaries
Amount due to jointly controlled entities
Tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

Total equity

position of the

—2-F —E-%F
2011 2010
ARETT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
1,451,645 1,629,770
46,192 47,575
40,654 46,828
29,370 37,780
285,073 285,073
315,774 315,774
2,330 4,322
2,171,038 2,267,122
864,129 1,209,025
293,918 324,551
667,974 334,977
74 =
2,408,373 1,201,290
1,383 1,383
2,890,800 3,300,500
525,177 1,382,178
7,641,828 7,753,904
2,328,191 2,727,779
168,490 66,457
35,642 41,913
79,336 63,140
30,495 31,706
2,642,054 2,930,995
4,999,774 4,822,909
7,170,812 7,090,031
2,482,268 2,482,268
4,688,544 4,607,763
7,170,812 7,090,031
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Revenue

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of
the Company
Non-controlling
interests

BE+T-A=t—-HLEE

For the Year ended 31 December

ZE-—F ZZ-ZF Z_ZZTNE ZST\E ZETtE

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

ABRTT NRBTT ARETT ARETT AREFIT
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

8,148,839 6,107,141

4,489,968 3,960,818 3,756,513

416,932 355411 292514 205614 190,912
(60,782)  (62,088)  (67,354)  (26,295) (19,798
356,150 303,323 235,160 179,319 171,114
353,668 301,666 240,827 175,159 159,236

2,492 1,657 (5,667) 4,160 11,878
356,150 303,323 235,160 179,319 171,114
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Cont’d)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Attributable to:
Owners of
the Company
Non-controlling
interests

Rt=A=t-8H

As at 31 December
R ZB-BF “¥FTNE ZFF/\F ZBFLF
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ANEETFT ARETT ARETFT ARETFT ARKTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

10,139,076 10,387,266 9,077,170 8,403,302 8,308,426
(2,593,581) (2,949,487) (1,741,887) (1,178,486) (1,187,917)

7,545,495 7,437,779 7,335,283 7,224,816 7,120,509

7,253,553 7,148,122 7,045,036 6,928,321 6,827,627

291,942 289,657 290,247 296,495 292,882

7,545,495 7,437,779 7,335,283 7,224,816 7,120,509
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PROPOSAL FOR APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT
FOR THE YEAR OF 2011

In accordance with the pertinent regulations and based on the actual
situation of the Company, the board of directors of the Company
resolved that the proposed appropriation of profit for the year of
2011 be as follows:

1. The appropriation of net profits after taxation shall be: 10% for
Statutory Reserve Fund, 0% for Statutory Public Benefit Fund
(Note) and 90% for profit available for distribution.

2. A final dividend of RMBO0.12 per share in cash is proposed.
Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting, the proposed final dividend is expected
to be paid to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of shareholders on Tuesday, 19 June 2012. Further
announcement will be made as to the exact form of payment.

Note: In accordance with the amendment to the Company Law of PRC on 27
October 2005 effective from 1 January 2006, and pursuant to the Company's
articles of association and the resolutions of the board of directors of the
Company, the Company decided not to accrue for Statutory Public Benefit
Fund from the year of 2006.

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
26 March 2012
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

WU Yun (Chairman)

GAO Jianmin

Makoto TANAKA (General Manager)
Ryozo TSUKIOKA

LIU Guangming

PAN Yong

YUE Huagiang

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni

SUPERVISORS

MIN Qing (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
ZHOU Hong

ZHANG Wanijin

COMPANY SECRETARY
PRC: WU Nianging
Hong Kong: TUNG Tat Chiu Michael

AUDIT COMMITTEE

SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
LIU Guangming

LONG Tao

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
WU Yun (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni

CORPORATE INFORMATION AVAILABLE AT
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

LEGAL ADDRESS

1 Xiexing Cun

Zhongliangshan

Jiulongpo District

Chongging

the People's Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suite 4901, 49th Floor

Office Tower, Convention Plaza

1 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.gingling.com.cn

H SHARE REGISTRARS
Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

H SHARE LISTING PLACE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1122



»~ 7 & # CORPORATE INFORMATION

FEARBIT PRINCIPAL BANKERS
FEIRITEE ST Bank of China, Chongging Branch
RBIRITEED T Bank of Communications, Chongging Branch
FREIEBITEEDTT The Commercial and Industrial Bank of China, Chongging Branch
PR IEETHRIUMER The Commercial and Industrial Bank of China, Zhongliangshan Office
1% ¢ AUDITORS
EEEXGEHELAMBER A A Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.
FEARKM 8/F, Office Tower W2

it = ™ 100738 The Towers, Oriental Plaza
REZEHIR 1 East Chang An Avenue

R BS R EER Beijing 100738

AR RNIESRE the People’s Republic of China
e BAEMR AT EETANTT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

BB HEEBSH 35/F, One Pacific Place

N E % — Hi35HE 88 Queensway, Hong Kong
EEEE LEGAL ADVISERS

BEEZH - as to Hong Kong laws:

KIES AT Tung & Co.

ERETIR Office 1601, 16/F

EFRNEHR3IHR LHT Tower

b=/G@mARE 31 Queen's Road Central

16121601 = Central, Hong Kong

IR AT Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo

BEBPIR 26/F., Jardine House

REES 1R 1 Connaught Place

18 F1 K [E 2618 Central, Hong Kong

B ELE G as to PRC laws:

G R A =T Haiwen & Partners
hEANREME Room 1016

it = 100027 Beijing Silver Tower

G = No. 2 Dong San Huan North Road
=3R4 EE25% Chao Yang District

ItREEXRE Beijing 100027

1016 = the People’s Republic of China
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